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Achievements and highlights of Garfield Weston Foundation

Cumulative 
donations since 
1958: 

£968million

£7.2million 
granted to Youth 
organisations – 
63% increase on 
previous year

Record spend – over

£62million 
awarded this year

Continued growth in 
Welfare spend -

£11.7million 
24% increase on 
previous year

130 Major 
Grants 
(£100,000 or greater) 
awarded – largest 
number in any one 
year to date

Over 

250 
Community 
organisations 
supported

+24%

130
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2017

£1.1million 
granted to charities 
helping offenders to 
transform their lives

North East 
£4.2million 
granted representing 
8% increase on 
previous year 

Fully 

refreshed 
website and 
guidelines launched

£2million 
awarded to active 
environmental 
conservation projects

Weston Charity 
Awards further 
extended to include 
the Midlands – 

38 charities 
benefited so far and 
growing

Focus on 
Wales resulted 
in 37% more grants 
exceeding £2.5million 

New 
category 
of Museums & 
Heritage added to 
reflect importance 
of the sector

+8%
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Chairman’s report

As the Chairman of the Foundation, I have 
pleasure in introducing the Annual Report of 
the Trustees for the year to 5 April 2017.

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the accounting policies set out in the 
notes to the accounts and comply with the charity’s 
governing document, the Charities Act 2011 and 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing 
their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland published on 16 July 2014 (FRS102).

Structure, governance and management

Structure

The operation of the Foundation is governed by a Trust 
Deed dated 10 October 1958.

At 5 April 2017, the Foundation owned 79.2 percent of 
Wittington Investments Limited, a company registered in 
England. Wittington Investments is the ultimate holding 
company of Associated British Foods plc, which is listed 
on the London Stock Exchange, Fortnum and Mason plc 
and Heal’s plc. Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the 
investment in the Wittington Investments Limited group 
of companies forms the permanent capital endowment 
of the Foundation and the Trustees may not dispose of 
those investments except by a unanimous vote of all the 
Trustees. 
 
Governance and management

In accordance with the Trust Deed, after the death of 
Mr W Garfield Weston and his wife, their descendants 
became Trustees. The number of Trustees is limited to 
ten but must be at least five. If the number of Trustees 
drops below five, new Trustees fall to be appointed from 
amongst the lineal descendants of W Garfield Weston.
 
Being family members, incoming Trustees are aware of the 
aims and objectives of the Foundation and the manner in 
which the Trustees carry out their responsibilities. Nearly 
all of the Trustees are on the board of other charitable 
entities either in the UK, the United States or Canada. The 
Foundation is a member of the Foundations Forum and the 
Association of Charitable Foundations and also receives 
the main charities’ journals. This ensures that the Trustees 
are well placed to keep up to date with developments in 
charity practice and regulations. In addition, the Trustees 
receive direct information in relation to important areas 
from both their Secretary, who attends monthly meetings 
and is a practising lawyer with expertise in the charity field, 
and from their auditors UHY Hacker Young LLP.

The Trustees are directly responsible for the management 
of the Foundation and hold regular meetings in order to 
consider grant applications for £100,000 or more and to 
ratify smaller grants which have been made since their 
previous meeting. While the initial processing of grant 
applications is dealt with by an experienced (but small) 
team of staff, every application is seen by at least one 
of the Trustees who also actively participate in meetings 
with and visits to applicants. The Trustees also hold an 
annual meeting in order to adopt the Annual Report 
and Accounts and to carry out a formal review of the 
fulfilment of the Charity’s aims and objectives, policies 
and the investment performance over the year. 
 
Risk management 

The Trustees are satisfied that appropriate policies, 
protection, systems and checks remain in place in order 
to mitigate exposure to major risks and to ensure that 
the Foundation operates in accordance with ethical and 
environmental guidelines and protections. The Director 
and Secretary review operational risks and policies on 
an ongoing basis and these are formally considered by 
the Trustees at their Annual Meeting.

The principal risks relate to investment performance 
and operational risks in terms of grant-making arising 
from system malfunctions or fraudulent applications. 
There is also a reputational risk for the charity in terms 
of its relationship with the underlying trading activities of 
companies held through Wittington Investments Limited 
and the ABF group.

Operational: The computer system and internal 
procedures are regularly updated and reviewed and 
all grant applicants are screened by a skilled grants 
administration team which has been expanded in line 
with the increase in donations. 

Investments: The Trustees regularly review the 
performance of the underlying assets and their 
shareholding in the Wittington Investments Limited 
group and receive reports directly from those who 
are managing the businesses. The non-Wittington 
investments are also managed in accordance with a 
policy which balances risk with investment returns (see 
below).

Reputation: The direct involvement of members of the 
Trustee board in the activities of the Wittington group 
also enables them to be fully appraised of events which 
might give rise to unwelcome media attention and hence 
reputational risks.

Conflicts of interest: The Trustees have in place a 
detailed policy regarding conflicts of interest both in 
terms of their grant-making decisions, and also in terms 
of the fact that some of them are both trustees and 
directors of Wittington group companies; this potential 
for conflict is carefully managed with proper procedures 
and the taking of independent advice where necessary. 
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Ethical and environment: As well as implementing their 
own policies to protect the environment (for example, 
nearly all applications are now made on-line and the 
Trustees receive meeting papers electronically, thus 
reducing the need for paper and printing), the Trustees 
also keep under scrutiny the ethical and environmental 
practices as carried out by the underlying businesses in 
the Wittington group. The Foundation does not employ 
its own staff but, in relation to its secondees, adheres 
to the practices laid down by Wittington and Associated 
British Foods in connection with the Modern Slavery Act 
and corporate responsibility - for more details see 
www.abf.co.uk/modern_slavery_statement and 
www.abf.co.uk/responsibility.

Income and grant-making aims and 
objectives

The Trust Deed contains broad charitable objects which 
allow the Trustees, in their discretion, to pay or apply the 
income and, subject to the restrictions set out below, 
the capital of the Trust Fund to or for the benefit of any 
charitable bodies, trusts, associations, institutions or 
organisations.

Total income receipts for the year were over £65.9 
million (2016: £62.15 million). This has enabled the 
Trustees to increase their total grants to just over 
£62.75 million in support of 1,978 appeals (2016: 
£58.7 million in support of 1,617 appeals). Out of the 
total grants figure, just over £5.3 million represents 
pledges made in the current year; these ensure that 
funds are used effectively when required and, in some 
cases, are designed to provide matched-funding to 
give an incentive to other donors. The total outstanding 
forward commitments at the end of the financial year 
were just under £10.6 million, which is well within the 
Trustees’ aim that pledges should not exceed 20% of 
their annual projected income, and the Trustees have 
ample income resources to meet these as they are 
called upon.

The grants made, as in previous years, support a wide 
range of charitable activities with a broad geographical 
spread across the UK. The trend towards supporting 
Community, Welfare and Youth projects has continued, 
including key £1 million grants to Auckland Castle 
towards an apprenticeship scheme and the Prince’s 
Trust for a new youth centre in Birmingham and 
£600,000 to the Prisoners’ Education Trust, as well as 
outreach to the most disadvantaged areas by a further 
extension of the Weston Charity Awards.

The Trustees have also, in conjunction with the Art Fund, 
initiated and provided initial funding for the Weston 
Loans Programme which is aimed at facilitating the 
borrowing by regional museums of key works of art from 
larger institutions.

See the Director’s Report and full list of grants made for 
more details.

Grant-making policy

The Foundation continues to accept only appeals from 
UK registered charities. No applications from individuals 
are considered and the Trustees do not typically fund 
projects outside the UK, nor do they fund animal welfare 
charities.

The Trustees’ aim is to keep the application process 
as simple and streamlined as possible. Step by step 
guidelines as to how to make a grant application 
(which should ideally be submitted online, although 
the alternative of making a postal application is still 
available), together with helpful details of the criteria 
which are taken into consideration when assessing 
applications and the information which should be 
submitted with an application are available on the 
Foundation’s website (www.garfieldweston.org).
All applications are considered on an individual 
basis, but the Trustees will not consider any funding 
request made within 12 months of the outcome of 
a previous application. Whenever it is considered 
necessary or desirable, visits are made by Trustees 
and/or the Director or one of the other members of 
the Foundation’s grants team in order to gain a better 
understanding of applicants’ requirements. Regular 
contact is maintained with recipients of grants for 
monitoring purposes, while at the same time minimising 
disruption to the recipient charity’s activities. 

Public benefit

The Trustees have complied with section 2(1)(b) of the 
Charities Act 2011, having due regard for the Charity 
Commission’s guidance on public benefit when reviewing 
the Foundation’s aims and objectives, when setting the 
grant-making policy and in making awards. 

Achievements and performance

The Trustees continue to increase levels of donations 
on a year by year basis whilst maintaining adequate 
income reserves. This is facilitated by a steady 
increase in dividends received from their investment 
in the Wittington group of companies which forms the 
Foundation’s endowment. 

Investment performance

As at 5 April 2017 the Trustees’ portfolio with Investec 
was valued at nearly £58.1 million (2016: £49.9 million) 
which equates to an annual return net of fees of 20%. 
The WM Charities Index which the Trustees have 
previously used as a performance comparison no longer 
exists, and comparison has therefore been made with 
the net return on the ARC (Asset Risk Consultants) 
Charity Steady Growth Index, which to 31 March 2017 
was 15.7%. The net cumulative three year return on the 
Investec portfolio was 27.3% as against the benchmark 
of RPI plus 4% over a rolling three year period (19%).
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The Unigestion portfolio was valued on 5 April 2017 at 
£38.5 million (2016: £36.44 million) and performed 
well below both benchmarks.

The two portfolios are intended to provide 
complementary investment strategies which balance 
a reasonable return against protection from downside 
risk. The Unigestion portfolio has not been meeting 
this objective and the Trustees are (with advice from 
professional investment consultants, Bfinance) in the 
process of finding a new manager for this portfolio which 
can provide the same level of risk protection but better 
overall performance and fee levels.
  
The capital value of the Savills’ Charities Property Fund 
has remained fairly static at £5.76 million (2016: £5.73 
million).

As mentioned above, the Foundation’s principal 
investment in the Wittington Group has once again 
maintained a steady performance during a volatile 
investment climate and dividend levels have increased. 
The Trustees receive a report on an annual basis which 
includes a detailed consideration of the underlying 
activities of Associated British Foods, Fortnum & Mason 
and Heal’s. Changes in the valuation of Associated 
British Foods are due to share price fluctuations as 
a result of market conditions and do not affect the 
dividend or the underlying profitability of the investment. 
Further analysis of the investment assets can be 
found in Note 8 to the Financial Statements. A copy 
of Wittington Investments Limited’s accounts for the 
year to 17 September 2016 can be obtained from the 
Foundation’s principal office. 

Financial review

In accordance with required accounting policy, grants 
are recognised in the statement of financial activities 
when approved by the Trustees and communicated to 
the recipients, irrespective of the future period over 
which payments are to be made, and the obligations 
outstanding at the year end are recognised as creditors. 

Costs

There has been a further reduction in accounting and 
computing and IT costs from the previous year owing to 
in-house efficiencies , although staff costs are higher 
owing to a small increase in the team to assist with 
additional activities to facilitate grant applications. 

Reserves

The Trustees’ policy is to maintain reserves of 
approximately 50 per cent of the Foundation’s annual 
income bearing in mind the general timing of income 
receipts, their general pattern of giving and the current 
economic climate. This target has been met in the 
current year and the appropriate reserve levels going 
forwards will be kept under review.

Investment objectives

The Trustees’ investment objectives in relation to their 
non-Wittington group assets as set out in the policy 
statement are to preserve the absolute value of the 
capital, whilst maintaining its ‘real’ value. The managers 
are instructed to adopt a relatively conservative 
investment strategy investing in a balanced portfolio 
without geographical, currency or sector restriction, 
subject to the terms of a Charity Commission Order 
dated 19 September 2001. The primary benchmark 
for investment performance remains at RPI plus 4% 
over a rolling three year period, although comparison 
has also been made on an annual basis with the WM 
index for charities. The Trustees are aware that the ARC 
index, which is based on the portfolios of much smaller 
charities, is not an ideal replacement for the WM Index 
for Charities and are working with Investec to find a more 
suitable alternative annual comparison.

Given the relatively small size of the independently 
managed portfolios as compared with the Foundations’ 
overall assets, the Trustees have chosen not to adopt 
a specific ethical investment policy. However, as 
mentioned above, the Trustees’ principal investment, 
namely Associated British Foods, is a highly diversified 
global business with an extensive and practical 
approach to responsible business. The Trustees have 
a direct line of sight into this business, making the 
Foundation’s approach to responsible investment more 
transparent and with a higher degree of clarity than 
other models might afford. 

Trustees’ responsibilities for the financial 
statements

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the 
Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales 
requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year which give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources of the charity for 
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the 
Trustees are required to:

■■ select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently;

■■ observe the methods and principles in the Charities 
SORP;

■■ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent;

■■ state whether applicable accounting standards and 
statements of recommended practice have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial statements; and
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■■ prepare the financial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 
that the charity will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper records 
which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial 
position of the charity and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Charities Act 
2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 
2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the charity’s assets and 
hence taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and breaches of law and regulations.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the charity and financial information included 
on the charity’s website. Legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination 
of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions.

Plans for future periods

As the Trustees look forward to the 60th anniversary of 
the Foundation in October 2018, their continuing priority 
is to support a broad range of charitable causes without 
any sector restrictions or ‘quotas’ and also to ensure 
that funding reaches those recipients who are most 
deserving and who can make the most impact.

The Trustees are nevertheless conscious that, although 
their income and capacity to give away more has increased, 
the numbers of applications remain fairly static and the 
Trustees are exploring options as to how to ensure that 
their grants provide the optimum public benefit.

Guy H Weston
Chairman of the Trustees	 9 October 2017
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Director’s Report 

I am delighted to report that 2016/17 was a 
record year with over £62.7 million granted 
to nearly 2,000 charities across the UK. 

The Trustees remain focused on helping charities 
that demonstrate they are meeting need effectively 
with clear outcomes and benefits, good leadership 
and a commitment to excellence. The Foundation’s 
consistently flexible approach is particularly relevant 
in the current economic and political climate with its 
inherent uncertainties - this flexibility is a deliberate 
strategy on the part of the Trustees as it enables them 
to respond swiftly and decisively to changing trends and 
issues while also maintaining consistency across other 
areas of our work.

The Foundation’s annual expenditure grew by 7% this 
year and it is especially pleasing that our grants under 
£100,000 increased significantly on last year - typically 
these grants are made to small to medium sized 
front-line charities that make a real difference to their 
local communities. In addition, successfully reversing 
a slight decline in the total number of applications the 
Foundation has received over the past four years, we 
are particularly pleased to note that our proactive work 
in the North of England and across categories such 
as Welfare and Youth is now bearing fruit. We plan to 
maintain this activity to ensure that we continue to 
meet need where it is most acute, especially at a time 
when unrestricted and core funding becomes ever more 
important.

Similar to other national funders, in recent years the 
Foundation has struggled to attract applications from 
Wales. In 2015/16 we commissioned research into the 
voluntary sector in Wales to understand the key issues 
in the region as input to Trustees’ decision making and 
Foundation activities. The results caused us to initiate 
a progamme of awareness raising across Wales and to 
develop partnerships with other grant-makers, whilst the 
Trustees also awarded grants to help charities access 
training and capability building opportunities. We will 
continue to monitor this and, although it is early days, 
there are some encouraging signs – we received 32% 
more applications from Wales this year and were able 
to donate more in funding as a result. Our challenge will 
be to maintain this growth not only in Wales but also 
in other areas where need is evident and a similarly 
strategic approach would be beneficial.

Funding is only one element of what our grantees tell 
us they need and this is especially the case outside 
London where resources can be harder to access. 
This year we have worked with a carefully selected 
number of organisations with programmes that are 
proven to build capability and capacity in their charity 
participants. These targeted ‘resilience grants’ have 
supported training, advice and support to the voluntary 
sector in the North of England, Wales and the Midlands 

through organisations such as the Cranfield Trust, 
Small Charities Coalition and the Association of Chairs 
to name a few. These grants also complement our 
Weston Charity Awards which we run in partnership with 
Pilotlight. These Awards offer intense mentoring and 
business coaching to small charities working in the fields 
of Youth, Community and Welfare. Initially established 
in 2014 the Trustees recognised the importance of the 
Awards and extended them across the North and then 
further again to the Midlands this year. The following 
section shares a little more about the current Weston 
Charity Award holders, their work and aspirations.

We are excited that 2018 will mark the 60th anniversary 
of the Garfield Weston Foundation and we will be 
launching a series of events, publications, partnerships 
and special awards to celebrate the thousands of 
amazing charities that the Foundation has supported 
throughout its history. 

Philippa M. Charles
Director	



Garfield Weston Foundation 9

Weston Charity Award Holders

Apex Charitable Trust

Apex Charitable Trust supports former offenders with complex needs into employment, training, education and 
voluntary work. Operating across Merseyside, Apex supports around 200 people a year.

Our main goal is to develop our organisation into a more self-sustaining 
service, being less reliant on Trust funders.  We have started this journey 
with the Weston Charity Awards, looking intensively at how we operate 
and have made huge strides in changing our way of thinking, developing a 
Strategy & Ambition model, and outlining where we can best utilise it.

Kim Hughes, CEO

Disability Action Yorkshire

Disability Action Yorkshire (DAY) works with 
over 100 disabled young people and adults in 
Harrogate. The charity runs a residential care 
home and provides training in the skills required 
to live independently and ultimately to help their 
clients into employment. 

We are currently undergoing a period 
of significant transformation and the 
Weston Charity Awards are a major part 
of supporting us in this. The advice and 
guidance we are receiving is invaluable and 
has already enabled us to make changes 
that have directly benefited our clients.

Jackie Snape, CEO
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Falcon Support Services

Falcon Support Services provides accommodation for the homeless in Leicestershire. Falcon helps over 380 
homeless people a year to gain the confidence, self-esteem and life skills crucial for stable, independent living.

Being able to work with the same business leaders continually 
over such a long period of time was incredible. They get to know 
you and your charity inside out. It was often challenging but the 
impact and the legacy of the Pilotlighters  is worth more than 
any money could buy.  

Marie Davis, CEO

The Awards have enabled Hope to clearly 
define its mission and formulate its 
Business Plan for the next three years.  
The experience, skill and commitment of 
the Pilotlight team has been invaluable 
- a resource that we would have been 
unable to access elsewhere.

Clare Thomas, CEO

Hope Support Services

Hope Support Services helps young people who 
have a family member diagnosed with a life-
limiting illness to cope with the emotional impact 
of a loved one’s potential death at the point of 
diagnosis, rather than once they are bereaved. 
Youth sessions are currently provided in person in 
Herefordshire and Gloucestershire, and nationally 
individuals are supported through an online portal.



It was amazing to hear that a small 
organisation like ours won a Weston Charity 
Award. Pilotlight have given me the tools 
and awareness to implement a clear plan of 
where our organisation is going, and I now 
believe we have more chance of achieving 
success.

Michelle Nicholson, CEO

Key Changes

Key Changes supports and tackles social barriers 
for women who have experienced the criminal 
justice system. They provide mentoring to prevent 
reoffending, run a women’s centre with access 
to skills development in addition to offering work 
experience in their social enterprise hair salon.

Garfield Weston Foundation 11
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The Weston Charity Awards has given 
LD:North East the opportunity to take 
a step back and really focus in on 
what we do well and the impact we are 
having, and has given Trustees, myself 
and colleagues a renewed confidence 
in leading the organisation into new 
territory, as we look to further develop 
the way in which we work.

David Robinson, CEO

LD:North East

LD:North East supports people of all ages who 
have a learning disability in addition to their 
carers. Operating across North Tyneside the 
charity delivers a range of services supporting 
over 500 people a year.

Malvern Special Families

Malvern Special Families (MSF) provides clubs and play schemes for children and young people with disabilities 
in Malvern and Worcester. The charity provides fun, engaging activities for disabled 5-19 year olds to enable them 
to develop vital life skills and to ultimately play an active role in their local communities.

The Awards have given us the 
opportunity to stand back from 
our day to day work and, with 
the support of our Pilotlighters, 
make some real changes that 
will have such a positive impact 
on our future. 
Maria Munda, Business Manager



At the start of this process I was a new CEO and I have found 
the Pilotlighters’ experience, support and challenge absolutely 
invaluable. I have learnt so much from their ability to cut through 
to the key issues. I have increased my strategic and business 
skills as a consequence of the Awards which will benefit my 
organisation enormously in the future.

Vicki Beere, CEO

Project 6

Project 6 in West Yorkshire, works to reduce the harm caused by 
substance misuse for individuals, their families and the wider 
community. Their services focus on information and advice, treatment 
and recovery, family support and awareness raising in the community. 
Project 6 supports over 5,000 people a year.

Garfield Weston Foundation 13
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The Award has been transformational. 
The Pilotlight team’s broad insight and 
commitment to our success has allowed 
us to face big challenges around how we 
develop our model.

John Piekos, CEO

SAFE

SAFE in Greater Manchester, works to prevent human trafficking by educating 
those at risk, and the industries where trafficked people are exploited.

Sight Advice South Lakes

Sight Advice South Lakes supports blind and 
partially sighted people across Cumbria to 
maintain their independence. They support 
up to 800 people annually with their services 
which include advice and information, aids and 
equipment and a wide range of activities.

I fully recommend the Weston Charity Awards to any 
small/medium sized charity. As a Chief Executive, 
having the time to reflect and work through priorities 
has been invaluable.

Claire Park, Director
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Sport 4 Life

Sport 4 Life’s mission is to create a better future 
for unemployed and socially excluded young 
people in Birmingham, by improving their life 
skills and employability. Sport 4 Life’s package 
of support enables young people to gain 
qualifications, progress to employment, education 
or training and to increase their self-esteem and 
life chances.

We’re delighted to have been 
awarded a Weston Charity Award 
and benefit from the expert 
support of Pilotlight. The process 
has improved our governance 
and strategy, and solidified our 
foundations for future growth and 
ultimately increase impact for our 
beneficiaries.
Tom Clarke-Forrest, Founder & CEO

The Pilotlighters’ wealth of experience 
and knowledge has been invaluable. 
Their expertise and insight has been 
transformational for myself and our 
charity. It’s pushed us to the next level; 
a place where we can support more 
children and families, and do that in a 
better way.

Emma Pears, Charity Co-ordinator

Skipton Extended Learning for All

Skipton Extended Learning for All (SELFA) supports 300 children each year in North Yorkshire to improve their 
self-confidence, self-esteem and to develop positive attitudes. The children they work with are affected by 
disability, from low income families or are struggling in mainstream school.
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The Award process was brilliant to take part in. The support 
and guidance we have received from Pilotlight has been 
revolutionary for The Wellspring. We now have a business plan 
which has given the charity a clear, achievable set of aims 
that are benefitting hundreds of homeless and disadvantaged 
people. I can’t thank Pilotlight and the Garfield Weston 
Foundation enough for everything they have done to support 
The Wellspring.

Jonathan Billings, CEO

The Wellspring Stockport

The Wellspring Stockport is a frontline resource centre for homeless 
and disadvantaged people in Stockport. Their doors are open every 
day of the year and support ranges from hot meals, showers and 
laundry to emotional support and access to on-site health care. 

We are very pleased to be able to envisage a robust business 
plan as a result of the support we’ve had from our Pilotlight 
team, armed with much better knowledge about how to 
become more sustainable, and how to achieve our future 
vision in financial terms.

Dickie James, CEO

Staffordshire Women’s Aid

Staffordshire Women’s Aid supports women and children living with, escaping or recovering from the impacts of 
domestic and sexual violence. The charity supports around 1,000 women per year through their 24-hour helpline, 
community outreach services, refuge accommodation and awareness training.
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Zest – Health for Life

Zest – Health for Life addresses the health inequalities and social isolation of people living in disadvantaged 
areas of Yorkshire, predominantly East Leeds and Rotherham. Their work is achieved largely through food projects 
and cooking which help people develop the confidence to gain employment, improve their health and create 
vibrant healthy communities. Zest currently reaches over 13,000 people a year.

Working with the Pilotlighters 
has transformed my thinking 
and built up my confidence as 
a CEO. We are coming to the 
end of our programme with a 
business strategy, new Board 
members and a clear direction 
of how we are going to achieve 
our dreams and aspirations.

Marcia Lewinson, CEO

Women Acting in Today’s Society (WAITS)

WAITS is a Birmingham charity that helps women, primarily those 
who have experienced domestic abuse and female offenders, 
helping the latter to integrate into the community. The charity 
supports over 120 women a year.

The Weston Charity Awards and Pilotlight process has 
challenged the Board, management and staff of Zest – 
Health for Life to think and act differently. This has led us 
to change, where appropriate, the way we work to help 
set us on a path to greater sustainability.

Dom Charkin, Community Projects Manager
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Summary of grants awarded in the year ended 5 April 2017

Category
Over

£20,000
No. of

grants
£20,000

and under
No. of

grants
Total

amount
Total no.
of grants

Arts 5,150,000 56 1,075,000 104 6,225,000 160

Community 3,940,000 40 1,705,200 212 5,645,200 252

Education 7,720,000 56 931,950 103 8,651,950 159

Environment 7,613,000 23 346,000 32 7,959,000 55

Faith 527,000 15 2,798,000 412 3,325,000 427

Health 4,584,000 56 945,000 83 5,529,000 139

Museums & Heritage 5,840,000 36 114,900 9 5,954,900 45

Welfare 8,353,000 111 3,436,650 352 11,789,650 463

Youth 5,307,760 74 1,911,500 199 7,219,260 273

Other 440,000 3 15,000 2 455,000 5

Totals 49,474,760 470 13,279,200 1,508 62,753,960 1,978

Arts £6,225,000

Community £5,645,200

Education £8,651,950

Environment £7,959,000

Health £5,529,000

Welfare £11,789,650

Youth £7,219,260

Other £455,000

Faith £3,325,000

Museums & Heritage £5,954,900

Total amount by category
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Arts 160

Community 252

Education 159

Environment 55

Health 139

Faith 427

Welfare 463

Youth 273

Other 5

Museums & Heritage 45

Number of grants by category

London 272

National 130

Yorkshire & the Humber 129

East Midlands 98

Eastern 120

Wales 104

Non UK 3

South West 247

South East 269

Scotland 128

North West 161

Northern Ireland 51

North East 118

West Midlands 148 100
7.18
57.16
92.86
14.32
85.72
64.3
21.46
78.58
35.74
71.44
42.88
28.6
50.02

Number of grants by region

National £9,406,000

Yorkshire & the Humber £1,782,800 East Midlands £1,231,700

Eastern £3,522,000

London £10,743,650

Wales £2,590,260

Non UK £1,100,000

South West £5,504,500

South East £5,312,750

Scotland £3,573,300

Northern Ireland £803,500
North East £4,222,200

North West £9,024,300

West Midlands £3,946,000
100
7.18
57.16
92.86
14.32
85.72
64.3
21.46
78.58
35.74
71.44
42.88
28.6
50.02

Total amount by region
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Independent auditors’ report to the Trustees of Garfield Weston Foundation

We have audited the financial statements of the Garfield Weston Foundation for the year ended 5 April 2017 which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 ‘‘The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’’.

This report is made solely to the Charity’s Trustees, as a body, in accordance with section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Charity’s Trustees those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Charity and the Charity’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Trustees and auditors

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the Trustees are responsible for 
the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view.

We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with 
regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. 

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

■■ give a true and fair view of the state of the Charity’s affairs as at 5 April 2017, and of its incoming resources and 
application of resources, for the year then ended;

■■ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

■■ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report to you if, 
in our opinion:

■■ the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial 
statements; or

■■ sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or 

■■ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

■■ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

UHY Hacker Young	 Quadrant House
Chartered Accountants	 4 Thomas More Square
Statutory Auditor	 London E1W 1YW

9 October 2017

UHY Hacker Young LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2017

       Unrestricted funds

Total funds
2017
£'000

Total funds
2016
£'000Notes

Income
funds
£'000

Expendable
capital
£'000

Restricted
funds
£'000

Income and endowments 
from

Investments 2 63,741 2,198 - 65,939 62,150

Total income 63,741 2,198 - 65,939 62,150

Expenditure

Costs of generating funds:

Raising funds  - 287 - 287 276

Charitable activities:  

Grant making activities 4 63,585 - - 63,585 59,540

Total expenditure 63,585 287 - 63,872 59,816

Net income 156 1,911 - 2,067 2,334

Other recognised gains and 
losses

(Loss)/gains on revaluation 
and disposal of investment 
assets - 12,367 (2,859,427) (2,847,060) 1,895,781

Net movement in funds 
before transfers between 
funds 156 14,278 (2,859,427) (2,844,993) 1,898,115

Gross transfers between 
funds 11 3,480 (3,480) - - -

Net movement in funds 3,636 10,798 (2,859,427) (2,844,993) 1,898,115

Total funds brought forward 30,227 92,182 12,628,286 12,750,695 10,852,580

Total funds carried forward 33,863 102,980 9,768,859 9,905,702 12,750,695

All recognised gains and losses have been included in the Statement of Financial Activities and the amounts included 
are derived entirely from the continuing activities of the Foundation.
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Balance sheet as at 5 April 2017

            2017            2016

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed assets

Investments 8 9,871,224 12,719,881

Current assets

Debtors 9 777 624

Cash at bank 44,707 41,797

45,484 42,421

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year 10(a) (11,006) (11,607)

Net current assets 34,478 30,814

Net assets 9,905,702 12,750,695

Restricted funds

Permanent endowment funds 11 and 12 9,768,859 12,628,286

Unrestricted funds

Expendable capital fund 11 and 12 102,980 92,182

Income funds 11 and 12 33,863 30,227

9,905,702 12,750,695

								      

The financial statements on page 21 to 65 were approved by the Trustees on 9 October 2017 and were signed on their 
behalf by:

Guy H Weston
George G Weston
Trustees
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 5 April 2017

Notes
2017

£’000
2016

£’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash outflow from operating activities 13 (61,026) (58,680)

Cash flow from investing activities

Dividends and interest from investments 65,939 62,150

Proceeds from disposal of investments 23,787 28,462

Purchase of investments (26,854) (28,137)

Net cash provided from investing activities 62,872 62,475

Increase in cash 14 1,846 3,795
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 5 April 2017

1	 Accounting policies 	

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting 
and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) issued on 16 July 2014 and the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) and the Charities Act 2011 and UK Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have departed from the Charities 
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to provide a ‘true and fair view’. This departure 
has involved following Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) issued on 16 July 2014 rather than the 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has 
since been withdrawn. The Trust constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS102.

The particular accounting policies adopted by the Trustees are described below:

a	 Investments

Investments are stated at valuation at the balance sheet date as follows:

■■ at the Trustees’ valuation of the unquoted equity investments as explained in note 8.

■■ at the market value of the managed portfolios as advised by the fund managers.

b	 Incoming resources

Dividends are included when received. Interest receivable on fixed interest securities and bank deposits is included 
on an accruals basis. All incoming resources are recognised once the Charity has entitlement to the resources, it is 
probable that the resources will be received and the monetary value of incoming resources can be measured with 
sufficient reliability. 

c	 Resources expended and irrecoverable VAT

Liabilities are recognised as resources expended as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing 
the Charity to the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under 
headings that aggregate all costs related to the category. 

Grants awarded are charged in the year when formally awarded by the Trustees and communicated to the recipient 
irrespective of the period covered by the donation as they are regarded by the Trustees as financial obligations.  

Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred. 

d	 Allocation of overhead and support costs

Overhead and support costs are allocated first between charitable activity and governance. Overhead and support 
costs relating to charitable activities have been apportioned based on the value of individual grant awards made 
as it is considered that more is spent awarding, monitoring and assessing grants of greater value. The allocation of 
overhead and support costs is analysed in note 5.	

e	 Costs of generating funds

The costs of generating funds consist of investment management fees and commissions. 

f	 Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities include grants made and an apportionment of overhead and support costs as shown 
in notes 3 and 4.
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g	 Governance costs

Governance costs comprise all costs involving the public accountability of the Charity and its compliance with 
regulation and good practice. These costs include costs related to statutory audit and legal fees together with an 
apportionment of overhead and support costs.

h	 Interest in Wittington Investments Limited

At 5 April 2017 the Foundation owned 79.2% (2016: 79.2%) of Wittington Investments Limited, a company 
registered in England. Wittington Investments Limited is the ultimate holding company of Associated British Foods 
plc, and a wide range of investments including Fortnum & Mason plc and Heal’s plc. Associated British Foods is 
listed on the London Stock Exchange whereas Fortnum & Mason and Heal’s are unlisted subsidiary undertakings. 
The Foundation receives its income from Wittington Investments Limited by way of dividends and records its 
investment in that company at Trustees’ valuation.

As the activities of Wittington Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are fundamentally different from the 
activities of the Foundation, consolidated accounts have not been prepared as the Trustees are of the opinion 
that the adopted policy gives a true and fair view of the Foundation’s assets and sources of income. Details of the 
consolidated accounts of Wittington Investments Limited are shown in note 8 to these accounts. The Trustees have 
agreed this policy with the Charity Commission.

i	 Fixed assets investments

Investments are stated at market value as at the balance sheet date. The statement of financial activities includes 
the net gains and losses arising on revaluation and disposals throughout the year. 

j	 Realised gains and losses

All gains and losses are taken to the statement of financial activities as they arise. Realised gains and losses on 
investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value. Unrealised gains 
and losses are calculated as the difference between the market value at the year end and opening market value. 
Realised and unrealised gains are not separated in the Statement of Financial Activities.

k	 Fund accounting

Details of the nature and purpose of each fund are set out in note 11.

2	 Investment income 

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Unlisted equities - - 63,526 63,526 60,110

Listed equities 1,415 - - 1,415 1,079

Listed unit trusts 157 275 - 432 481

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 353 - - 353 327

Cash held within the portfolio - - - - 5

1,925 275 63,526 65,726 62,002

Cash deposits – interest 102 148

Other Income 111 -

65,939 62,150

	
The unlisted investment income comprises dividends 	received from Wittington Investments Limited.
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3	 Grant making activities

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Grants awarded (note 4) 63,585 59,540

The list of individual grants made during the year is set out in note 16 and grants paid during the year are summarised 
by category in note 10. 

Significant aspects of the grant activity during the year are described on pages 4 to 19 of the Trustees’ report. 
 
4	 Analysis of charitable expenditure

The Charity undertook no direct charitable activities but awarded grants to a number of institutions in furtherance of its 
charitable activities. As a consequence of supporting charitable organisations, the Foundation achieves public benefit. 
The Foundation’s grant policy is to accept only appeals from UK registered charities. Registration provides an element 
of assurance of public benefit, although for charities registered before the implementation of the Charities Act 2006 the 
public benefit was a presumption.

Grant
funded 
activity

£’000
Support

£’000
Governance

£’000

2017
Total

£’000

2016
Total

£’000

Arts 6,225 94 31 6,350 10,632

Community 5,645 86 28 5,759 5,609

Education 8,652 131 43 8,826 14,599

Environment 7,959 121 39 8,119 2,211

Faith 3,325 50 17 3,392 7,650

Health 5,529 84 27 5,640 4,266

Museums & Heritage 5,955 90 29 6,074 0

Welfare 11,790 178 58 12,026 9,690

Youth 7,219 109 36 7,364 4,499

Other 455 7 2 464 728

62,754 950 310 64,014 59,884

Return relating to grants made in 
prior years (3) (3) (24)

Expired commitments (426) (426) (320)

62,325               950 310 63,585 59,540
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5	 Allocation of support costs and overheads 

Governance
costs

£’0000

Grant
making
activity

£’000

Total
2017

£’000

Total
2016

£’000

Basis of
apportionment

£’000

Staff costs 102 407 509 441 Staff time

Other costs 208 543 751 698 Staff time

310 950 1,260 1,139

The costs relating to grant making activity represent costs incurred in assessing applications, administration of the 
grants awarded and post grant monitoring.    

The Foundation does not employ any staff. Staff costs comprise charges of £488,867 from Wittington Investments 
Limited in respect of the work undertaken by its employees for the Foundation and £20,250 consultant charges.

Included within other support costs and overheads are amounts relating to accountancy of £953 (2016: £18,027), 
computing and IT costs of £40,825 (2016: £52,312) and accommodation costs of £434,278 (2016: £484,065).

 4 (2016: 3) Trustees received expenses totalling to £5,204 relating to travel and subsistence. 

The total support cost attributable to charitable activities is then apportioned pro rata to the value of grants awarded in 
the year as set out in note 4.

6	 Analysis of governance costs

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Auditors’ remuneration-audit services 12 19

Staff costs 102 88

Other support costs 195 111

309 218

The governance costs comprise costs of running the Foundation and planning for future developments, including 
audit fees and costs of complying with constitutional and statutory requirements, such as Trustees’ meetings and the 
preparation of accounts satisfying public accountability.
.
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7	 Trustees’ remuneration

a	 Trustees’ remuneration	

No remuneration was paid to the Trustees for their services to the Foundation.

b	 Directors’ remuneration

As stated in notes 1(i) and 8, the Foundation owns 79.2% of Wittington Investments Limited which in turn holds 
54.5% of Associated British Foods plc, 100% of Fortnum & Mason plc and 100% of Heal’s plc.  

Four of the Trustees, W Galen Weston, Guy H Weston, George G Weston and Catrina A Hobhouse are directors 
of Wittington Investments Limited. Of these four, Guy H Weston and Kate Hobhouse received remuneration from 
Wittington Investments Limited. George G Weston is a director of Associated British Foods plc and received 
remuneration from the company in that capacity. Guy H Weston is a director of Heal’s plc but does not receive 
remuneration from that company. Mrs Catrina A Hobhouse is a director of Fortnum & Mason plc and received 
remuneration from that company. Mrs Jana R Khayat resigned as a director of Fortnum & Mason plc in 2015 and 
received no remuneration from that company.

Remuneration (comprising salary, fees, bonus and benefits) paid to Trustees in their capacity as directors of these 
companies, which is authorised by clause 13 of the Trust Deed, as set out in the most recently available accounts 
of the relevant companies was as follows:

Year ended
17 September

2016
£’000

Year ended
12 September

2015
£’000

Guy H Weston – as a director of Wittington Investments Limited 285 271

George G Weston – as a director of Associated British Foods plc (note below) 3,133 3,057

Year ended
12 July

2016
£’000

Year ended
12 July

2015
£’000

Jana R Khayat – as a director of Fortnum & Mason plc 
(resigned 12 July 2015)

- 44

Catrina A Hobhouse – as a director of:
Fortnum & Mason plc
Wittington Investments Limited

54
20

44
15

Note: Full details of George G Weston’s remuneration, pension and options are set out in the Remuneration Report 
contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2016 of Associated British Foods plc.

c	 Key management remuneration

Key management personnel’s remuneration constituted the total aggregate amount of £228,926 (2016: 
£214,583).
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8	 Investments 

At valuation
Fixed asset investments

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property 

fund 
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
 £’000

At 6 April 2016 85,865 5,728 12,628,288 12,719,881

Movement in year 10,735 35 (2,859,427) (2,848,657)

At 5 April 2017 96,600 5,763 9,768,861 9,871,224

At Cost*

At 6 April 2016 and at 5 April 2017 70,000 5,000 4,745 79,745

*	The cost at 5 April 2016 and 2017 is the historical cost of the investment in the managed funds and the charities 
property fund or, in the case of unlisted investments, the valuation at the date of the gift to the Foundation.

The managed funds are managed on a discretionary total return basis.

The charities property fund comprises units in the Savills Charities’ Property Fund.

The unlisted investments comprise 683,073 50p ordinary shares (79.2%) of Wittington Investments Limited, an 
unquoted company, see note 1 (i).

Analysis of value of investment assets at 
5 April 2017 - by type

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property 

fund 
 £’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Unlisted securities 3,403 - 9,768,861 9,772,264

Listed equities 60,781 - - 60,781

Listed unit trusts 12,343 5,763 - 18,106

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 17,543 - - 17,543

Cash held within the portfolio 2,530 - - 2,530

96,600 5,763 9,768,861 9,871,224

The business of Wittington Investments Limited is the management of investments in a wide range of assets. As it is an 
unquoted company there is no readily identifiable market price for its shares. Accordingly, the value of the Foundation’s 
investments has been assessed by the Trustees on the basis of the share of the value of the underlying net assets of 
Wittington attributable to the Foundation’s holding. 

Wittington’s principal asset is a holding of 54.5% of the issued ordinary capital of Associated British Foods plc (‘ABF’) 
which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. In assessing the value of the underlying net assets of Wittington the 
value of its investment in ABF has been based on the mid-market price as at 5 April 2017. In arriving at this valuation no 
regard has been paid to the percentage controlling interest held by the Foundation.
 
In addition, Wittington holds a wide range of other assets managed in five different business segments: 

■■ Other Retail, comprising the 100% ownership of Fortnum & Mason and Heal’s, two long established retailers,

■■ Real Estate, investing in high-quality investment properties in the retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK. 
It also takes strategic positions in selective development opportunities, alongside local partners or sector specialists.

■■ Hotels. Wittington currently owns The Grand, Brighton and Richmond Hill Hotel.   

■■ Private Equity, investing both directly and via externally managed funds in private equity, and

■■ Other Investments are principally composed of liquid investments in short-dated investment grade bonds and listed 
equities.
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The value of these has been based on the Trustees’ valuation at 5 April 2017. The Trustees have no current intention of 
disposing of the interest in Wittington.

17 September
2016

£’000

17 September 
2015

Restated
£’000

12 September
2015

£’000

Equity shareholders’ funds 5,151 4,669 4,676

Total net assets 8,423 7,730 7,771

Revenues 13,555 12,943 12,943

Operating Costs (12,494) (11,946) (11,946)

Profit attributable to equity holders 485 303 307

Minority interests 375 230 234

Profit for the period 860 533 541

Dividends payable 109 69 69

9	 Debtors

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Accrued interest 249 168

Amount due from investment managers 528 456

777 624
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10	 a	 	 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Grants payable 10,596 11,117

Accrued expenses 410 490

11,006 11,607

	 b	 	 Total grants payable

Grants
payable

b’fwd 
£’000

Grants 
awarded

£’000

Grants
paid

£’000

Grants
lapsed
£’000

Grants
payable

c’fwd
£’000

Arts 3,700 6,225 (5,830) (25) 4,070

Community 859 5,645 (5,653) (20) 831

Education 2,004 8,652 (8,826) (110) 1,720

Environment 2,628 7,959 (10,194) (100) 293

Faith 879 3,325 (3025) (77) 1,102

Health 75 5,529 (5,239) - 365

Museum & Heritage - 5,955 (5,060) - 895

Welfare 485 11,790 (11,575) (60) 640

Youth 487 7,219 (6,992) (34) 680

Other - 455 (455) - -

11,117 62,754 (62,849) (426) 10,596

The grants payable as at 5 April 2017 include grants awarded in the current year as well as grants awarded in prior years.
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11	 Analysis of charitable funds

Analysis of Fund 
movements

Balance at
6 April 

2016
£’000

Incoming
resources

£’000

Resources
expended

£’000
Transfers

£’000

Gains
and losses

£’000

Balance at
5 April 

2017
£’000

Permanent endowment 12,628,286 - - - (2,859,427) 9,768,859

Unrestricted 
expendable capital 92,182 2,198 (287) (3,480) 12,367 102,980

Unrestricted income 
fund 30,227 63,741 (63,585) 3,480 - 33,863

Total 12,750,695 65,939 (63,872) - (2,847,060) 9,905,702

Permanent endowment

The permanent endowment funds comprise the original capital fund, and gains thereto, established to provide income 
for grant payments in accordance with the objectives of the Foundation. The capital may not be converted into income. 
The funds are represented by the investments included in fixed assets. Unrealised gains on revaluation of these 
investments are credited to the funds.

Unrestricted expendable capital

In accordance with the authority given to the Trustees under an Order of the Charity Commission dated 19 September 
2001, £65,747,000 was transferred to an expendable capital fund in relation to which income and capital are 
distributable at the discretion of the Trustees. £5 million was invested in 2001/02 in the Charities Property Fund and 
£60 million was invested in 2002/03 with investment managers in balanced portfolios on a discretionary total return 
basis. Income and investment gains and losses are taken to this fund and the amount allocated to income by the 
Trustees, £3,480,000 (2016: £3,349,000), is shown as a transfer to the income fund.

Unrestricted income funds

The income of the Foundation is expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of the 
Foundation. Gains on investments held in the income funds are credited to these funds.

12	 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 5 April 2017 are represented by

Income
funds
£’000

Expendable
capital

fund
£’000

Endowment
funds
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Investments - 102,365 9,768,859 9,871,224

Current assets 44,707 777 - 45,484

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (10,844) (162) - (11,006)

Total net assets 33,863 102,980 9,768,859 9,905,702
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13	 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the Statement of 
financial activities): (2,844,993) 1,898,115

Adjustments for: 
Losses/(gains) on investments 2,850,660 (1,895,781)

Dividends and interest from investments (65,939) (62,150)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (153) 26

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (601) 1,110

Net cash used in operating activities (61,026) (58,680)

14	 Analysis of changes in cash balances during the year

2016
£’000

Cash flow
£’000

2017
£’000

Cash at bank 41,797 2,910 44,707

Cash held for future investment 3,594 (1,064) 2,530

45,391 1,846 47,237
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15	 Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2016

       Unrestricted funds

Total funds
2016
£'000

Income
funds
£'000

Expendable
capital
£'000

Restricted
funds
£'000

Income and endowments from

Investments 60,264 1,886 - 62,150

Total income 60,264 1,886 - 62,150

Expenditure

Costs of generating funds:

Raising funds  - 276 - 276

Charitable activities:

Grant making activities 59,540 - - 59,540

Total expenditure 59,540 276 - 59,816

Net income 724 1,610 - 2,334

Other recognised gains and losses

(Loss)/gains on revaluation and disposal of investment 
assets - (2,810) 1,898,591 1,895,781

Net movement in funds before transfers between 
funds 724 (1,200) 1,898,591 1,898,115

Gross transfers between funds 3,349 (3,349) - -

Net movement in funds 4,073 (4,549) 1,898,591 1,898,115

Total funds brought forward 26,154 96,731 10,729,695 10,852,580

Total funds carried forward 30,227 92,182 12,628,286 12,750,695
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16	 Grants awarded

The grants highlighted with * indicate pledges made during the year which are accounted for in the year they are 
awarded, although the cash grant may not be released for up to two years.

Grants over £20,000

Arts £

The Glasgow School 
of Art Glasgow  500,000 

Royal Opera House 
Covent Garden 
Foundation London  300,000 *

Southbank Centre London  300,000 

Tate London  300,000 

Hall for Cornwall 
Property Trust Truro  250,000 

The Hepworth 
Wakefield Wakefield  250,000 *

The Institute of 
Contemporary Arts London  250,000 

The Roundhouse London  250,000 

National Art Collections 
Fund National  200,000 

WASPS (Workshop 
Artist Studio Provision 
Scotland) Glasgow  200,000 

Artichoke Durham  100,000 

Edinburgh Printmakers Edinburgh  100,000 

Goldsmiths, University 
of London London  100,000 *

Horsecross Arts Ltd 
(Perth Theatre and 
Perth Concert Hall) Perth  100,000 

Royal Court Liverpool 
Trust Liverpool  100,000 

The Darlington Civic 
Theatre Foundation Darlington  100,000 

Tricycle Theatre London  100,000 

Lyric Hammersmith London  95,000 

Art UK Cardiff  90,000 

Rosehill Theatre Whitehaven  75,000 

South East Dance Brighton  75,000 

Firstsite Colchester  60,000 

Garsington Opera Oxford  60,000 

Little Angel Theatre London  60,000 

London Musical 
Theatre Orchestra Chipperfield  60,000 

National Youth Jazz 
Orchestra National  60,000 *

Scottish Opera Glasgow  60,000 

Corn Exchange 
(Newbury) Trust Newbury  50,000 

Crafts Council London  50,000 

Glasgow Film Theatre Glasgow  50,000 

NVA Europe Ltd Glasgow  50,000 

Storyhouse Chester  50,000 

Unity Theatre Liverpool  50,000 

Wilton’s Music Hall London  40,000 

Heart n Soul London  35,000 

Amersham Museum Amersham  30,000 

Cahoots NI Belfast  30,000 

Community Music 
Wales Ltd Cardiff  30,000 

Malvern Theatres Trust 
Ltd Great Malvern  30,000 

New Diorama Theatre London  30,000 

Stage One London  30,000 *

The Gloriana Trust London  30,000 

The Oates Memorial 
Library and Museum 
and the Gilbert White 
Museum Alton  30,000 *

The Watermill Theatre Berkshire  30,000 

Theatre Peckham London  30,000 

Woodhorn Charitable 
Trust Ashington  30,000 

Britten Sinfonia Ltd Cambridge  25,000 *

Donmar Warehouse 
Projects Ltd London  25,000 

Helix Arts Newcastle upon 
Tyne  25,000 

National Dance 
Company Wales Cardiff  25,000 *

Park Theatre London  25,000 

Rose Theatre Kingston Kingston  25,000 

The Poetry Society National  25,000 

Theatre de Complicite 
(Education) Ltd London  25,000 

Wiltshire Music Centre Bradford on Avon  25,000 

Youth Music Theatre 
UK National  25,000 *

Total for Arts 5,150,000

(Total number of grants: 56)

Community £

Auckland Castle Trust
Bishop Auckland

 
1,000,000 

Kent Mining Heritage 
Foundation Deal  500,000 

Foundation of Light Sunderland  300,000 *

Imperial College 
London London  300,000 

Hay Castle Trust Hereford  200,000 

YMCA East Surrey Redhill  150,000 

Genesis Trust Bath  100,000 

JW3 Development London  90,000 
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Cornwall Community 
Foundation Launceston  75,000 *

Friends of Hylton Dene Sunderland  75,000 *

Northampton Roman 
Catholic Diocese Northampton  75,000 *

Jain Samaj Manchester Manchester  70,000 

Discover DeCrypt Gloucester  50,000 *

JPK Sussex Project Eastbourne  50,000 *

Llanthony Secunda 
Priory Trust Gloucestershire  50,000 *

People and Work Cardiff  50,000 

Rothesay Pavilion 
Charity Rothesay  50,000 *

Small Charities 
Coalition National  50,000 

Step Together 
Volunteering Bristol  50,000 *

Writers’ Centre Norwich Norwich  50,000 *

174 Trust Belfast  40,000 

Brighton Unemployed 
Centre Families Project

Brighton and 
Hove  40,000 

Cullingworth Village 
Hall Management 
Committee Ltd Bradford  35,000 *

Reach Volunteering National  35,000 

5th Dartford Group - 
Scouts Kent  30,000 

Central London 
Samaritans London  30,000 

Gateway into the 
Community Hexham  30,000 

Glasgow Building 
Preservation Trust Glasgow  30,000 

Grŵp Cynefin Denbigh  30,000 

Ketton Sports and 
Community Centre 
(KSCC) Ketton  30,000 *

Linskill and North 
Tynesdie Community 
Development Trust North Shields  30,000 

Open Door Furniture 
Recyling Ltd Burnley  30,000 

Phab Ltd National  30,000 

Rowner Community 
Trust Gosport  30,000 

Volunteering Matters National  30,000 

Do-it Trust London  25,000 *

Hope Nottingham Nottingham  25,000 

Listening Books National  25,000 

Northampton Door to 
Door Service Northampton  25,000 

The Tram Stop Shelter Southend-on-Sea  25,000 

Total for Community 3,940,000

(Total number of grants: 40)

Education £

University College 
Dublin

Rebublic of 
Ireland

 
1,000,000 

The University of 
Manchester Manchester  750,000 *

IntoUniversity Leeds/Liverpool/
Manchester  500,000 *

University of East 
Anglia Norwich  500,000 *

Catch22 Charity Ltd National  435,000 *

Church of England 
Foundation for 
Education Leadership National  300,000 

The Brilliant Club Lancaster/
Liverpool/
Newcastle  300,000 

The Oxford Trust Oxford  300,000 *

Thomas Coram 
Foundation for Children London  300,000 

Derry City & Strabane 
District Council Derry  250,000 

Royal Central School of 
Speech and Drama London  250,000 

York Archaeological 
Trust York  250,000 

Bedford College Bedford  200,000 

Royal Conservatoire of 
Scotland Glasgow  150,000 *

Achievement For All Newbury  100,000 

Chailey Heritage 
Foundation North Chailey  100,000 

Future First London  100,000 

Queen Elizabeth 
Scholarship Trust National  100,000 

St George’s Bristol Bristol  100,000 

The Creative Dimension 
Trust Cambridge  100,000 

The University of 
Nottingham Nottingham  100,000 

UWC Atlantic College Vale of 
Glamorgan  92,000 

British Nutrition 
Foundation National  75,000 

Chelsea Academy 
Foundation London  75,000 

Queen Elizabeth 
Scholarship Trust National  75,000 

Ruskin Mill Land Trust Nailsworth  75,000 

St Albans Museums 
and Galleries Trust St Albans  75,000 

University of Bath Bath  70,000 *

Stuart Hall Foundation London  60,000 

Brunel University 
London Uxbridge  50,000 

Council for At-Risk-
Academics London  50,000 *
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Leeds College of Music Leeds  50,000 

National Literacy Trust National  50,000 

Pocklington School 
Foundation York  50,000 

ReachOut London  50,000 

The London School of 
Architecture London  50,000 

The Rank Foundation National  50,000 

The Royal African 
Society London  50,000 

Arkwright Scholarships 
Trust Leamington Spa  30,000 

Bury Grammar School Bury  30,000 

Mill Hill School 
Foundation London  30,000 

Real Action (QPCT) Ltd London  30,000 

Reed’s School (The 
London Orphan 
Asylum) Cobham  30,000 

Techniquest Cardiff  30,000 

Wycombe High School High Wycombe  30,000 

Eastside Young 
Leaders’ Academy London  28,000 

Accelerate & Access 
Foundation London  25,000 

At-Bristol Science 
Centre Bristol  25,000 

Engineering 
Development Trust

Welwyn Garden 
City  25,000 

Hull Children’s 
University Hull  25,000 

London Diocesan 
Board for Schools London  25,000 

St Columba’s School Kilmacolm  25,000 

The Nucleo Project London  25,000 

The Portsmouth D-Day 
Museum Trust Portsmouth  25,000 

The Voices Foundation National  25,000 

Winchester College Winchester  25,000 

Total for Education 7,720,000

(Total number of grants: 56)

Environment £

The Royal Horticultural 
Society Salford

 
5,000,000 

Cambridge 
Conservation Initiative Cambridge  453,000 

National Botanic 
Garden of Wales Llanarthney  300,000 

Oceana National  300,000 

The Woodland Trust Scotland  250,000 *

The Royal Society for 
the Protection of Birds 
(RSPB) Eastern  200,000 

The Whitley Fund for 
Nature National  150,000 

Trees for Cities National  150,000 

Bat Conservation Trust National  100,000 

Farming and 
Countryside Education Stoneleigh Park  100,000 

Severn Rivers Trust Worcestershire  100,000 

Wildscreen Bristol  75,000 

Sustain: The Alliance 
for Better Food and 
Farming National  70,000 

British Trust for 
Ornithology (BTO) Thetford  50,000 

Sustainable Inshore 
Fisheries Trust (SIFT) Edinburgh  50,000 

The National Lobster 
Hatchery Padstow  50,000 *

Vincent Wildlife Trust Ledbury  50,000 *

Kent Wildlife Trust Maidstone  30,000 

The Conservation 
Volunteers Doncaster  30,000 

The Lesley Haskins 
Charitable Trust Wimborne  30,000 

Devon Wildlife Trust Exeter  25,000 

The Willoughbridge 
Garden Trust Market Drayton  25,000 

Yorkshire Wildlife Trust Doncaster  25,000 

Total for Environment 7,613,000

(Total number of grants: 23)

Faith £

Churches Conservation 
Trust Sunderland  100,000 

Trinity Methodist 
Clacton on Sea Clacton-on-Sea  50,000 

Blackburn Diocesan 
Board of Finance Ltd 
– Grassroots Family 
Centre at St Philips Blackburn  45,000 

Diocese of Sheffield Rotherham  40,000 

Bunyan Meeting Bedford  30,000 

Longton Community 
Church Preston  30,000 

The Parish of St John 
the Divine Frankby with 
St Nicholas Greasby Wirral  30,000 

Paddington 
Development Trust London  27,000 *

Badminton Road 
Methodist Church Bristol  25,000 

Fountain Square 
Church Tideswell  25,000 *

Keswick Methodist 
Church Keswick  25,000 *
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Linacre Methodist 
Mission and 
Neighbourhood Centre Liverpool  25,000 

St Augustine of Hippo Ipswich  25,000 

St Jude’s Church 
Plymouth Plymouth  25,000 

St Mary’s Without-The-
Walls Handbridge  25,000 

Total for Faith 527,000

(Total number of grants: 15)

Health £

Anthony Nolan National  300,000 

Parkinson’s UK National  300,000 

Birmingham Children’s 
Hospital Birmingham  250,000 

CW+ Chelsea and 
Westminster Health 
Charity London  250,000 

Action Medical 
Research Horsham  220,000 

National Osteoporosis 
Society National  200,000 

St David’s Foundation 
Hospice Care Newport  200,000 

King’s Health Partners London  150,000 

Pancreatic Cancer UK National  150,000 

Royal Hospital for 
Neuro-disability London  150,000 

Arthritis Research UK National  100,000 

BEAT National  100,000 

Caudwell Children Stoke-on-Trent  100,000 

Motor Neurone Disease 
Association National  100,000 

Noah’s Ark Children’s 
Hospice Barnet  100,000 

St Andrew’s Hospice 
(Lanarkshire) Airdrie  100,000 

St Wilfrid’s Hospice 
(South Coast Ltd) Chichester  100,000 

The Mary Stevens 
Hospice Stourbridge  100,000 

Tommy’s London  100,000 

Dorset County Hospital 
Charity Dorset  95,000 

Bloodwise National  90,000 

Cure Leukaemia Birmingham  75,000 

Enham Trust Andover  75,000 

The Elizabeth 
Foundation Portsmouth  75,000 

Bipolar UK National  50,000 *

CLIC Sargent National  50,000 

Dyslexia Research Trust National  50,000 *

Halesworth Community 
Nursing Care Fund Halesworth  50,000 

Horatio’s Garden Warminster  50,000 

Sea Sanctuary - the 
vessel for change Penryn  50,000 

The Grand Appeal Bristol  50,000 

The Liver Group Charity National  50,000 

Hertfordshire 
Community Foundation Hertfordshire  48,000 

Rethink Mental Illness National  40,000 

The National Deaf 
Children’s Society 
(NDCS) National  40,000 

Salisbury Hospice 
Charity Salisbury  38,000 

Auditory Verbal UK National  30,000 *

Crohns and Colitis UK National  30,000 

Force Cancer Charity Exeter  30,000 

Headway - The Brain 
Injury Association Nottingham  30,000 

PACT Sheffield  30,000 

Royal Brompton and 
Harefield Hospitals 
Charity London  30,000 

Terrence Higgins Trust National  30,000 

Wellspring Therapy and 
Training Harrogate  30,000 

Childhood Eye Cancer 
Trust National  25,000 

DEBRA National  25,000 

Dementia UK National  25,000 

Network Counselling 
and Training Ltd Bristol  25,000 

Paul Sartori Foundation Haverfordwest  25,000 

Safety Net (UK) Carlisle  25,000 

Smile Support & Care Southampton  25,000 

St Catherine’s Hospice Preston  25,000 

St Peter’s Hospice Bristol  25,000 

Stoke Mandeville Spinal 
Research (SMSR) Aylesbury  25,000 

The Prince of Wales 
Hospice Pontefract  25,000 

The Movement Centre Shropshire  23,000 

Total for Health 4,584,000

(Total number of grants: 56)

Museums & Heritage £

National Art Collections 
Fund National  750,000 

British Library London  500,000 

Natural History 
Museum London  500,000 

Norfolk Museums 
Development 
Foundation Norwich  500,000 *

V&A Museum of Design 
Dundee Dundee  500,000 
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Dorset County Museum Dorchester  300,000 

Museum of Science 
and Industry Manchester  300,000 

Design Museum London  250,000 

South West Film and 
Television Archive Plymouth  250,000 

Birmingham Museums 
Trust Birmingham  200,000 

English Heritage Trust National  200,000 

Leighton House 
Museum London  200,000 

The Architectural 
Heritage Fund London  150,000 

The National Trust Swindon  150,000 

William Hogarth Trust London  150,000 

National Museums 
Liverpool Liverpool  75,000 

Roman Baths 
Foundation Bath  75,000 

National Maritime 
Museum Cornwall Falmouth  70,000 

Save Britain’s Heritage National  60,000 

The Copped Hall Trust London  60,000 

Institution of Civil 
Engineers London  50,000 

South Tynedale Railway 
Preservation Society Alston  50,000 

Strawberry Hill Trust Twickenham  50,000 

The Kennet & Avon 
Canal Trust Devizes  50,000 

Bawdsey Radar Trust Essex  45,000 

Bury St Edmunds 
Heritage Trust Bury St Edmunds  40,000 *

The Mills Archive Trust Reading  40,000 

St Mary’s in the Market 
Square Lichfield  35,000 

Dundee Science Centre Dundee  30,000 

Friends of Corinium 
Museum Cirencester  30,000 

Holkham Walled 
Garden Holkham  30,000 

Petersfield Museum 
Limited Petersfield  30,000 

The Friends of Weston-
super-Mare Museum

Weston-super-
Mare  30,000 

The Holburne Museum Bath  30,000 

The Powell-Cotton 
Museum Birchington  30,000 

Winchester Cathedral 
Trust Winchester  30,000 

Total for Museums & 
Heritage 5,840,000

(Total number of grants: 36)

Welfare £

Prisoners’ Education 
Trust National  600,000 

Anna Freud National 
Centre for Children and 
Families London  500,000 

FareShare National  300,000 

Jamie’s Farm Corsham  300,000 

Age UK National  250,000 

Caritas Anchor House London  250,000 

NSPCC National  250,000 

Buttle UK National  225,000 

Smart Works Charity National  225,000 

Fine Cell Work National  200,000 

In Kind Direct National  200,000 

The Percy Hedley 
Foundation

Newcastle upon 
Tyne  200,000 

Emmaus UK Birmingham  150,000 

Farms for City Children Exeter  150,000 

Mustard Tree Manchester  150,000 

Abbeyfield Kent Society Folkestone  100,000 

Deptford Reach London  100,000 

Homeless Action 
Resource Project Ltd Southend-on-Sea  100,000 

Live Music Now London  100,000 

Prior’s Court 
Foundation Thatcham  100,000 

School-Home Support National  100,000 

St Petrock’s (Exeter) Ltd Exeter  100,000 

The London Centre for 
Children with Cerebral 
Palsy London  100,000 

The Silver Line National  100,000 

The Starfish Group (UK) National  100,000 

Royal National 
Children’s Foundation Surrey  90,000 

The Brendoncare 
Foundation Winchester  90,000 

Daybreak Family Group 
Conferences Winchester  80,000 

Changing Lives (Trading 
name of The Cyrenians 
Limited) Tyne and Wear  75,000 

Radford Care Group Nottingham  75,000 *

Royal British Legion 
Industries Aylesford  75,000 

Royal Voluntary Service Cardiff  75,000 

The Sir Oswald Stoll 
Foundation London  75,000 

Vital Regeneration London  75,000 

St Cuthbert’s Centre London  70,000 

Markfield Project Ltd London  60,000 

The National 
Association of 
Almshouses Wokingham  60,000 
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Trinity Winchester Winchester  60,000 

ABF The Soldiers’ 
Charity National  50,000 

AfriKids London  50,000 *

Age Cymru Cardiff  50,000 

Amersham United 
Charities (known as 
Amersham Almshouses) Amersham  50,000 

Anawim - Women 
Working Together Birmingham  50,000 

Carers Trust Fylde 
Coast Blackpool  50,000 

Methodist Homes Derby  50,000 

OnePlusOne London  50,000 

Prison Fellowship 
England and Wales National  50,000 

South London Carers 
and North London 
Carers London  50,000 

Special Olympics Great 
Britain National  50,000 

The 999 Club and Lady 
Florence Trust London  50,000 

The Aidis Trust London  50,000 

Winner, The Preston 
Road Women’s Centre 
Ltd Hull  50,000 

Woman’s Trust London  45,000 

Back on Track Manchester  40,000 

Contact the Elderly National  40,000 

Parents Against Child 
Sexual Exploitation 
(Pace) Leeds  40,000 

Pecan London  40,000 

Streetwise Opera London  40,000 

The C.R.U.M.B.S Project Bournemouth  40,000 

The Whitechapel 
Centre Liverpool  40,000 

Afasic London  30,000 

Age UK Islington London  30,000 

Alive Activities Ltd Bristol  30,000 

BCCS (Brentwood 
Catholic Children’s 
Society) Rayleigh  30,000 *

Bridgnorth Housing 
Trust Bridgnorth  30,000 

Camphill Devon 
Community Buckfastleigh  30,000 

Carers Trust Tyne & 
Wear Gateshead  30,000 

Carmarthenshire 
Youth & Children’s 
Association Llanelli  30,000 

Changing Tunes Bristol  30,000 

Contact a Family National  30,000 

Gwent Domestic Abuse 
Services Abertillery  30,000 

Healthy Living Projects 
Ltd Ilford  30,000 

Henshaws Society for 
Blind People Manchester  30,000 

Irene Taylor Trust National  30,000 

Magic Breakfast National  30,000 

NOAH Enterprise Luton  30,000 

North East Autism 
Society Chester-le-Street  30,000 

Parents and Children 
Together (PACT) Reading  30,000 

Queen Elizabeth’s 
Foundation for 
Disabled People Leatherhead  30,000 

Relate Derby & 
Southern Derbyshire Derby  30,000 

Sandes Soldiers and 
Airmen’s Centres Belfast  30,000 

SOS Domestic Abuse 
Projects Westcliff-on-Sea  30,000 

Spurgeons Rushden  30,000 

St Vincent’s Furniture 
Store Sheffield  30,000 

The Action Group Edinburgh  30,000 

The Clock (Yorkshire) 
Ltd Thirsk  30,000 

The House of St 
Barnabas London  30,000 

The Jericho Foundation Birmingham  30,000 *

YMCA Birmingham Birmingham  30,000 

Care4all (North East 
Lincolnshire) Ltd Grimsby  25,000 

City of Oxford Charity Oxford  25,000 

Cornerstone Supported 
Housing & Counselling 
Ltd Durham  25,000 

Diverse Abilities Poole  25,000 

EC Roberts Centre Portsmouth  25,000 

Faithworks Wessex Bournemouth  25,000 

First Stop Darlington Darlington  25,000 

Jigsaw+ Cranleigh  25,000 

Nordoff Robbins London  25,000 

North Devon Against 
Domestic Abuse 
(NDADA) Barnstaple  25,000 

Positive Steps Dundee  25,000 

Shannon Trust London  25,000 

Springfield Community 
Flat London  25,000 

Storeroom2010 Cowes  25,000 

Thanet Community 
Development Trust Ramsgate  25,000 

The Maytree Respite 
Centre London  25,000 
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The Skinners’ 
Almshouse Charity London  25,000 

The Stroud Court 
Community Trust Stroud  25,000 

Thorngate Almshouse 
Trust Gosport  25,000 

TIR COED Aberystwyth  25,000 

Voluntary and 
Community Services 
Peaks and Dales Buxton  25,000 

Autism NI Belfast  23,000 

Total for Welfare 8,353,000

(Total number of grants: 111)

Youth £

The Prince’s Trust Birmingham 1,000,000 *

Free the Children UK Newcastle  250,000 

Fylde Coast YMCA St Annes-on-Sea  250,000 

OnSide Youth Zones Bolton  250,000 

Place2Be National  225,000 *

Jerwood Charitable 
Foundation National  205,000 

Greenhouse Sports London  200,000 

MCC Foundation Wales  167,760 

Action for Stammering 
Children London  150,000 

The Alnwick Garden 
Trust Alnwick  150,000 

The Mix (YouthNet UK) Newcastle  100,000 

Valleys Kids Tonypandy  100,000 

SkillForce Development National  90,000 

Adventure Plus Bampton  75,000 *

Megan Baker House Leominster  60,000 

Only Boys Aloud (The 
Aloud Charity) Cardiff  60,000 *

YMCA London South 
West Surbiton  60,000 

Alive & Kicking London  50,000 

CDI Apps for Good National  50,000 

Inclusion Ventures Ltd Jaywick Sands  50,000 *

Safe and Sound Homes 
(SASH) York  50,000 

Salmon Youth Centre in 
Bermondsey London  50,000 

Step Up to Serve London  50,000 

Team Oasis Liverpool  50,000 

The Boxing Academy London  50,000 

The No Way Trust Ltd Hull  50,000 

YMCA North Tyneside North Shields  50,000 

Young Cumbria Cumbria  50,000 

Citadel Youth Centre Edinburgh  40,000 

Cramlington Voluntary 
Youth Project Ltd Cramlington  40,000 

e:merge (UK) Company 
Limited Bradford  40,000 

Llamau Cardiff  40,000 

Sport 4 Life UK Birmingham  40,000 

Sporting Futures Derbyshire  40,000 

YMCA Cardiff Cardiff  40,000 

YouthAction Northern 
Ireland Belfast  40,000 

Anne Frank Trust UK London  30,000 

Career Ready London  30,000 

Chain Reaction London  30,000 

Coram’s Fields London  30,000 *

Coventry Boy’s and 
Girl’s Club Coventry  30,000 

Henley YMCA Henley on 
Thames  30,000 

Making The Leap London  30,000 

Moving On (Durham) Ltd Durham  30,000 

Show Racism the Red 
Card North Shields  30,000 

Somerville Youth & Play 
Provision London  30,000 *

Spark Inside London  30,000 

St Andrew’s Youth Club London  30,000 

Straight Talking Peer 
Education London  30,000 

Teesdale Sailing and 
Watersports Club Richmond  30,000 

The Governors of the 
Peabody Trust London  30,000 

The Marine Society & 
Sea Cadets London  30,000 

YMCA Somerset Coast Bridgwater  30,000 

Youth Adventure Trust Swindon  30,000 

Youth Homeless North Sunderland  30,000 

2nd Llandaff Scout 
Group Cardiff  25,000 

Andrew Simpson 
Sailing Foundation Portland  25,000 

Creative Youth Network Bristol  25,000 

Dandelion Time Maidstone  25,000 

Frenford Clubs Ilford  25,000 

KeepOut - The Crime 
Diversion Scheme Horsham  25,000 

Northamptonshire 
Association of Youth 
Clubs Northampton  25,000 

Northumberland Clubs 
for Young People Ltd Newcastle  25,000 

Petersham & Ham Sea 
Scouts Richmond  25,000 

Reaching Higher Croydon  25,000 

Roundabout Ltd Sheffield  25,000 

Street League London  25,000 

The Eikon Charity Addlestone  25,000 

The Harrow Club London  25,000 
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The Source Young 
People’s Charity Aldershot  25,000 

Trinity Sailing Foundation Brixham  25,000 

Venture Scotland Edinburgh  25,000 

YKids Bootle  25,000 

YMCA Norfolk Norwich  25,000 

Total for Youth 5,307,760

(Total number of grants: 74)

Other £

The Cranfield Trust Cardiff  250,000 

Global Leadership 
Foundation National  100,000 

Association of Chairs National  90,000 *

Total for Other 440,000

(Total number of grants: 3)

Grants of £20,000 and less 

Arts £

Alphington Community 
Association Exeter  20,000 

Armonico Consort 
Limited Warwick  20,000 

Art Workers’ Guild 
Trustees Ltd London  20,000 

Arts 4 Dementia London  20,000 *

Chickenshed London  20,000 *

Fabrica Brighton  20,000 

Hoxton Hall Trust London  20,000 

Kirkgate Arts Cockermouth  20,000 

Leicester Print Workshop Leicester  20,000 

Leicester Theatre Trust 
Ltd Leicester  20,000 *

London Symphony 
Orchestra London  20,000 *

Mousetrap Theatre 
Projects London  20,000 

New Lodge Arts Belfast  20,000 

Oily Cart Company 
Limited London  20,000 

Orchestra of the Swan Stratford-upon- 
Avon  20,000 

The British 
Paraorchestra Bristol  20,000 *

The Other Room Cardiff  20,000 

The Southampton 
Nuffield Theatre Trust Southampton  20,000 *

Theatr na nÓg Neath  20,000 

Ballet Cymru Newport  15,000 

Bridport Arts Centre Bridport  15,000 

Immediate Theatre London  15,000 

Kala Sangam Bradford  15,000 

More Music Morecambe  15,000 

New English Ballet 
Theatre London  15,000 

Royal Philharmonic 
Society London  15,000 

The English Concert London  15,000 *

The Two Moors Festival Umberleigh  15,000 

YDance Glasgow  15,000 

Bishopsland 
Educational Trust Dunsden  12,000 

acta Community 
Theatre Ltd Bristol  10,000 

AmberSide Trust Newcastle upon 
Tyne  10,000 

Ballet Black London  10,000 

Box Clever Theatre 
Company London  10,000 

Carousel Brighton  10,000 

Cass Sculpture 
Foundation Nr Chichester  10,000 

Dance Touring 
Partnership Shoreham-by-Sea  10,000 

Engage London  10,000 

Future Talent London  10,000 

Grand Union London  10,000 

Ikon Gallery Birmingham  10,000 *

Ledbury Poetry Festival Ledbury  10,000 *

Left Bank Leeds Leeds  10,000 

Macrobert Arts Centre Stirling  10,000 

Manaton and East 
Dartmoor (MED) Theatre Newton Abbot  10,000 

Mortal Fools Stocksfield  10,000 

National Opera Studio London  10,000 

Open Arts Belfast  10,000 

OperaUpClose London  10,000 

Papatango Theatre 
Company Ltd London  10,000 

Pegasus Theatre Trust Oxford  10,000 

Sharnbrook Amateur 
Theatre Trust Bedford  10,000 

Stills Ltd Edinburgh  10,000 

Synergy Theatre Project London  10,000 

The Barn Theatre Trust Welwyn Garden 
City  10,000 

The Lettering & 
Commemorative Arts 
Trust (LCAT) Saxmundham  10,000 

The Makers Guild in 
Wales Cardiff  10,000 

The People’s Orchestra West Bromwich  10,000 

The Theatre Chipping 
Norton Chipping Norton  10,000 

Theatre Royal Plymouth Plymouth  10,000 

VocalEyes Ltd London  10,000 
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Volcano Theatre 
Company Swansea  10,000 

Drake Music Project 
Northern Ireland Co. Down  8,000 

Anjali Dance Company Wigginton  7,500 

Aspex Visual Arts Trust Portsmouth  7,500 

Blackwood Little 
Theatre Aberdare  7,500 

HighTide London  7,500 

Ledbury Amateur 
Dramatic Society Ledbury  7,500 

Lincoln Arts Trust 
Limited Lincoln  7,500 

NTC Touring Theatre 
Company Ltd Alnwick  7,500 

Psappha Manchester  7,500 

The Music Works Horsley  7,500 

Unfolding Theatre Newcastle upon 
Tyne  7,500 

Vamos Theatre CIO Worcester  7,500 

Sound Affairs Cardiff  6,000 

Bampton Classical 
Opera Bampton  5,000 *

Brighton Early Music London  5,000 

Children’s Classic 
Concerts Glasgow  5,000 

Chineke! Foundation Isleworth  5,000 

Conquest Art West Ewell  5,000 

Craft Scotland Edinburgh  5,000 

Docklands Sinfonia Kenley  5,000 

Drake Music Scotland Edinburgh  5,000 

Easington Colliery 
Brass Band                                                              Co. Durham 5,000 *

JazzUK Herefordshire  5,000 *

MACHA Productions Belfast  5,000 

Mid Powys Youth 
Theatre Llandrindod Wells  5,000 

Orchestra of the Age of 
Enlightenment London  5,000 

Project Art Works Hastings  5,000 

South Hill Park Bracknell  5,000 

The North East of 
Scotland Music School 
Ltd Aberdeen  5,000 

Theatre Centre Ltd London  5,000 *

Vauxhall Primary 
School London  5,000 

Visible Theatre 
Ensemble London  5,000 

The Mahler Players Inverness  4,000 

Regal Film Society Minehead  3,000 

The Hepworth Silver 
Prize Band Warlingham  3,000 *

Welsh Chamber 
Orchestra Ltd Bridgend  2,500 

New Harmonie Horsham  2,000 

Sylhet Bawl Shangith 
Ghosti London  2,000 

Borders Youth Theatre 
(BYT) Kelso  1,500 

Cumbria Rural Choirs Penrith  1,500 

Sutton Coldfield Choral 
Society Sutton Coldfield  1,000 

The Rude Mechanical 
Theatre Company Eastbourne  1,000 

Total for Arts 1,075,000 

(Total number of grants: 104)

Community £

Agnes Smith Advice 
Centre Oxford  20,000 

Bede House 
Association London  20,000 

Burnhope Community 
Centre Burnhope  20,000 

Christ Church 
Southampton CIO Southampton  20,000 

Clipstone Miners 
Welfare Community 
Trust Clipstone  20,000 

Foundation for 
Women’s Health 
Research and 
Development London  20,000 *

Havelock Family Centre Southall  20,000 

Home to Work Ltd Cleator Moor  20,000 *

Kingsbury Episcopi 
Amenities Improvement 
Committee Stembridge  20,000 

Lechlade Memorial Hall 
and Recreation Charity Lechlade  20,000 

Marshland St James & 
District Community & 
Sports Centre Norfolk  20,000 

Personal Support Unit 
(PSU) London  20,000 

RAY Ceredigion Aberaeron  20,000 

Speen Baptist Church Speen  20,000 

Tees Valley Women’s 
Centre Ltd Middlesbrough  20,000 

The Gate Arts Centre Cardiff  20,000 

View (Glynneath) Ltd 
- Glynneath Training 
Centre Glynneath  20,000 

Wereham Village Hall King’s Lynn  20,000 

Bassenthwaite Parish 
Room Management 
Committee Keswick  15,000 

CHANCE Sunderland  15,000 

East Budleigh Village 
Green

Budleigh 
Salterton  15,000 *
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Friends of Kensal Rise 
Library London  15,000 

Levenwick Village Hall Shetland  15,000 

Llangathen Village Hall Carmarthenshire  15,000 

Pallion Action Group Sunderland  15,000 

PCC of Holy Apostles Cheltenham  15,000 

Sedgefield Out Of 
School Fun Club Sedgefield  15,000 

St Luke’s Parochial 
Trust London  15,000 

Swansea Community 
Farm Swansea  15,000 

The Chatterbox Project Manchester  15,000 

The Pontarddulais 
Partnership Swansea  15,000 

The Welcoming 
Association Edinburgh  15,000 

Three Trees Community 
Centre Birmingham  15,000 

Via Wings Dromore  15,000 

All Saints Church, 
South Cave Brough  10,000 

Antioch Christian 
Centre Llanelli  10,000 

Barns Green Playing 
Field and Village Hall 
Trust Horsham  10,000 

Bentilee Volunteers 
Community Association Stoke-on-Trent  10,000 *

Bierley Community 
Association Ltd Bradford  10,000 

Bill Quay Community 
Farm Association Gateshead  10,000 

Blewbury Village Hall 
Executive Management 
Committee Didcot  10,000 

Bradford and Leeds 
Community Accounting 
Service Leeds  10,000 

Building Ballysally 
Together Coleraine  10,000 

College Road Primary 
School Plymouth  10,000 

Compaid Paddock Wood  10,000 

Comrie Scottish 
Women’s Institute 
Rural Hall Comrie  10,000 

Craigsfarm Community 
Development Project Ltd Livingston  10,000 

Darts (Doncaster 
Community Arts) Doncaster  10,000 

Diddlebury Village Hall Craven Arms  10,000 

Doorstep Library 
Network London  10,000 *

Eye & Dunsden Village 
Hall

Henley-on-
Thames  10,000 

Fallowfield Library & 
Community Resource 
Centre Manchester  10,000 

Family Friends 
in Windsor and 
Maidenhead Windsor  10,000 

Greysteel Community 
Enterprises Londonderry  10,000 *

Grindleford Playing 
Field Trust Grindleford  10,000 

Hale Village Hall Liverpool  10,000 *

Hartlepool Citizens 
Advice Bureau Hartlepool  10,000 

Highgate Newtown 
Community Centre London  10,000 

Homemaker Southwest Exeter  10,000 

Huttons Ambo Village 
Hall Malton  10,000 *

JAN Trust London  10,000 

Malvern Special 
Families Malvern  10,000 

Neasham Reading 
Room Darlington  10,000 

Norfolk Community Law 
Service Ltd Norwich  10,000 

Northgate United 
Reformed Church Darlington  10,000 

Pendower Good 
Neighbour Project

Newcastle upon 
Tyne  10,000 

Peter Bedford Housing 
Association Ltd London  10,000 

Re>Build (Bury) Bury  10,000 *

Sinnnington Village Hall 
Committee York  10,000 

St Anne’s Church Leicester  10,000 

St Peter & St Paul - 
C of E Great Bowden  10,000 

St Antony’s Centre for 
Church & Industry Manchester  10,000 

Strood Community 
Project Rochester  10,000 

The Bridge of Orchy 
Village Hall Trust Argyll  10,000 

The St Chad’s Centre 
Trust Company Ltd Leamington Spa  10,000 

Thomas Gifford Trust Charlbury  10,000 

Thundersley Methodist 
Church Benfleet  10,000 

Time and Talents 
Association London  10,000 

Uplands Educational 
Trust Swindon  10,000 

Vallance Community 
Sports Association London  10,000 

Walkhampton Memorial 
Hall Yelverton  10,000 
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Wallace House 
Community Centre Evesham  10,000 

Wigton Baths Trust Wigton  10,000 

Yesu Sheringham  10,000 

Orrell Park & District 
Community Association Liverpool  8,000 

3VA Eastbourne  7,500 

Ambleside Parish 
Centre Ambleside  7,500 

Aston Abbotts Village 
Hall Trust Aylesbury  7,500 

Bodle Street Green 
Village Hall Hailsham  7,500 

Camrowers Cambridge  7,500 

Cheshire Connect Chester  7,500 

City Arts Nottingham  7,500 

Daventry Contact Daventry  7,500 

Durham Christian 
Partnership Durham  7,500 

Enfield Bangladesh 
Welfare Assoc Enfield  7,500 

Gap - A Thanet 
Community Project Broadstairs  7,500 

Growing works Holmfirth  7,500 

Halewood Youth In 
Community Centre Liverpool  7,500 

Heath End Village 
Rooms Trust Baughurst  7,500 

Henderson Memorial 
Hall Abbots Langley  7,500 

Henley-in-Arden War 
Memorial Trust Henley-in-Arden  7,500 

Little Downham Village 
Hall Ely  7,500 

Modbury Memorial Hall Ivybridge  7,500 

Monty’s Community 
Hub Southampton  7,500 

Renfrewshire Foodbank Rendrew  7,500 

St Dogmaels Memorial 
Hall Cardigan  7,500 *

St Margarets Hall Users 
Group Cheltenham  7,500 

Stanton St Quintin 
Parish Hall Committee Chippenham  7,500 

Sunderland Headlight Sunderland  7,500 

Talbot Community 
Centre Bridgend  7,500 

The Clement James 
Centre London  7,500 

Thursby Sport & 
Recreation Committtee Carlisle  7,500 

Tolpuddle Village 
Hall Management 
Committee Dorchester  7,500 

Glasgow City Mission Glasgow  7,300 

Sport 4 Life UK Birmingham  6,200 *

Zest Health for Life Leeds  6,200 

Alton Community 
Association Alton  5,000 

Apna Ghar Minority 
Ethnic Women’s Centre South Shields  5,000 *

Banchory & District 
Initiative Ltd Banchory  5,000 *

Birmingham Children’s 
Community Venture Birmingham  5,000 

Bubwith Centre and 
Playing Fields Selby  5,000 

Chadwell Heath 
Community Centre Essex  5,000 

Communities 
Empowerment Network London  5,000 

Cwm Community Action 
Group Cwm Penmachno  5,000 

Dingle Multi Agency 
Centre Ltd Liverpool  5,000 

Downham Village 
Hall Management 
Committee Downham  5,000 

Dr Bells Family Centre Edinburgh  5,000 *

Dunscore Parish 
Church Dumfries  5,000 

Edith Bankes Memorial 
Hall Mold  5,000 

Felton Village Hall Morpeth  5,000 

Friends of Kingsdown 
Play Park Deal  5,000 

Glenbuchat Hall 
Community Association Strathdon  5,000 

Glossopdale Furniture 
Project Glossop  5,000 

Grey Court School Richmond upon 
Thames  5,000 

Hoole Community 
Development Trust Chester  5,000 

Hope North London London  5,000 

Ingatestone and 
Fryerning Community 
Association Ingatestone  5,000 

Leigh on Mendip 
Recreation Field 
Management 
Committee Radstock  5,000 *

Llangunllo Community 
Hall Management 
Committee Llangunllo  5,000 

Longparish Village Hall Andover  5,000 

Manningham Project 
Ltd Bradford  5,000 

Morris Memorial Hall Gloucestershire  5,000 *

Norton Village 
Hall Management 
Committee

Bury 
St Edmunds 5,000
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Roundhay St Johns 
Parochial Hall Leeds  5,000 

Rugby Town Sports Trust Rugby  5,000 

Sedbergh People’s Hall Sedbergh  5,000 *

Sikh Nari Manch UK Birmingham  5,000 

Small Heath 
Somali Community 
Organisation Ltd Birmingham  5,000 

Somali Welfare Trust Essex  5,000 

St Budeaux Church 
Community Hall 
Development 
Committee Plymouth  5,000 

St Laurence Church 
Downton PCC Salisbury  5,000 

St Matthew’s Centre Glasgow  5,000 

St Peters Community 
Wellbeing Projects London  5,000 *

The Derry Hill and 
Studley Village Hall 
Trust Calne  5,000 

The Exmoor Society Barnstaple  5,000 

The Mill @ Coppermill London  5,000 

The Moat Garden 
Project Castle Cary  5,000 *

The North Staffordshire 
Polish Day Care Centre

Newcastle under 
Lyme  5,000 

The Village Hall at 
Heage Belper  5,000 *

Tow Law Community 
Association Tow Law  5,000 

Volunteer Centre North 
Warwickshire Ltd Atherstone  5,000 

Warton Village Hall Carnforth  5,000 *

Wick Sports Ground Bristol  5,000 

Woolfardisworthy Sports 
& Community Hall Bideford  5,000 *

1st Saltburn Scout 
Group

Redcar and 
Cleveland  4,000 

Bromford Bridge 
Church Day Centre Birmingham  4,000 

Pennywell Community 
Centre Sunderland  4,000 

Sutton Bonington 
Village Hall Committee Loughborough  4,000 *

Access Space Network 
Ltd Sheffield  3,500 

Citizens Advice South 
Worcestershire Malvern  3,500 

Halesworth Volunteer 
Centre Halesworth  3,500 

Newark and Sherwood 
Play Support Group Newark  3,500 *

Shutford Village Hall Shutford, Banbury  3,500 

Stinchcombe Village 
Hall Dursley  3,500 

The Little Clacton 
Village Hall & Harold 
Lilley Playing Field Trust Clacton-on-Sea  3,500 

Wickham Community 
Association Wickham  3,500 *

Wylam Community 
Playing Fields 
Association (WCPFA) Wylam  3,500 

Broad Haven and 
District Village Hall Haverfordwest  3,000 

Butterleigh Village Hall Cullompton  3,000 *

East Knoyle Village Hall Salisbury  3,000 

East Somerset Railway Shepton Mallet  3,000 *

Headway West Sussex Littlehampton  3,000 

Kettlewell Village Hall Skipton  3,000 

Maurice Chandler 
Sports Centre Market Drayton  3,000 

Middleton Cheney 
Village Hall 
Management 
Committee Banbury  3,000 

St Giles Church 
Sheldon PCC Birmingham  3,000 

St Luke’s Community 
and Regeneration 
Enterprises Leeds  3,000 

St Matthew with 
St Mary’s Church 
Crumpsall Manchester  3,000 *

Studley Green 
Community Centre High Wycombe  3,000 

Thomas Hughes 
Memorial Hall 
Community Association Faringdon  3,000 

Bethany Baptist Church Cardiff  2,500 

Bradnop Village Hall Leek  2,500 

Caynham Village Hall 
Trust Shropshire  2,500 

Chelmsford Community 
Transport Chelmsford  2,500 

Frome St John the 
Baptist PCC Frome  2,500 

Pennard Parish Hall Swansea  2,500 

St Peter’s Church 
Hall and Stables 
Management 
Committee Bishop’s Waltham  2,500 

25th Sheffield 
(Ecclesfield) Scout 
Group Sheffield  2,000 

Bighton Village Hall Bighton  2,000 *

Grange Road Methodist 
Church Community 
Centre Hartlepool  2,000 

Hexham & Tynedale 
Community Trust Hexham  2,000 *

Kew Community Trust Richmond  2,000 
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Marylebone 
Bangladesh Society London  2,000 

Narberth & District 
Community & Sports 
Association (NDCSA) Narberth  2,000 

The Clockhouse, Home 
of The Milford and 
Villages Day Centre Godalming  2,000 

Charles Young Centre South Shields  1,500 

Allington Village Hall Grantham  1,000 

Redbrook Village Hall Monmouth  1,000 

South Muskham & 
Little Carlton Village 
Hall Newark  1,000 

St Cleer Memorial Hall Liskeard  1,000 

Thorner Parish Centre Leeds  1,000 

Whixley and District 
Community Cricket Whixley  1,000 *

Total for Community 1,705,200 

(Total number of grants: 212)

Education £

Awards for Young 
Musicians Bristol  20,000 *

Crimestoppers Trust Wallington  20,000 

Fife Cultural Trust Kirkcaldy  20,000 

George Abbot School Guildford  20,000 

Haydn Primary School 
and Nursery Nottingham  20,000 

North Liverpool 
Regeneration Company Liverpool  20,000 

Queen Mary’s Schools 
Foundation Walsall  20,000 

Rosemount Lifelong 
Learning Royston  20,000 

Royal Institute of British 
Architects (RIBA) National  20,000 

St Mary’s Cathedral 
Workshop Edinburgh  20,000 *

Tewkesbury Abbey 
Schola Cantorum 
Choral Scholarship 
Fund Cheltenham  20,000 

The Downs School Trust Newbury  20,000 

The Orpheus Centre Surrey  20,000 *

Winchester Science 
Centre Winchester  20,000 

Airborne Assault Ltd Duxford  15,000 

Cann Bridge School, 
School Fund Plymouth  15,000 *

Christ the Sower 
Ecumenical Primary 
School Milton Keynes  15,000 

Dartmouth Pre-School Dartmouth  15,000 

Four Corners Ltd London  15,000 

Involve Leeds Leeds  15,000 

Kernow Education Arts 
Partnership Redruth  15,000 *

Openup Music Bristol  15,000 *

Padbury CE School Padbury  15,000 

Queen Alexandra 
College (QAC) Birmingham  15,000 

The Foundation for 
Conductive Education Birmingham  15,000 

Barnet Education Arts 
Trust London  10,000 

Bishop Vesey’s 
Grammar School Birmingham  10,000 

Creative Futures (UK) 
Ltd London  10,000 

DangerPoint Ltd Talacre  10,000 

Doncaster Deaf Trust Doncaster  10,000 

ELBA - East London 
Business Alliance London  10,000 *

Exeter College Oxford  10,000 *

First Story Limited London  10,000 

GASP Motor Project Albury  10,000 

Governing Body of 
Ewhurst Infant School Ewhurst  10,000 *

Guildford County 
School Guildford  10,000 

Ideas Foundation London  10,000 

Life Education Wessex Blandford  10,000 

Little Ilford School London  10,000 *

Mosterton Pre School Dorset  10,000 

Pathway Workshop Oxford  10,000 

Rhyl Primary School Campden  10,000 

Right Track Scotland 
Ltd Glasgow  10,000 

Rutland House School 
for Parents Nottingham  10,000 

Sheldon School Chippenham  10,000 

Special Educational 
Needs Advice Centre Belfast  10,000 *

St Joseph’s Specialist 
School & College Cranleigh  10,000 

Sutton Grammar 
School Sutton  10,000 

The Philosophy 
Foundation Forest Hill  10,000 

The Scottish Traditional 
Skills Training Centre Turriff  10,000 *

The Usborne 
Foundation London  10,000 *

The Whithorn Trust Whithorn  10,000 

Alive and Kicking 
Theatre Company Leeds  7,500 

ALRA - The Academy of 
Live and Recorded Arts Wigan  7,500 

Friends of Drayton 
Junior School Norwich  7,500 *
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Holy Redeemer RC 
Primary School Pershore  7,500 *

Montessori Education 
for Autism London  7,500 

Positive Help Edinburgh  7,500 

Stephens and George 
Centenary Charitable 
Trust Merthyr Tydfil  7,500 

SELFA (Skipton 
Extended Learning For 
All) Skipton  6,200 

Beamont Collegiate 
Academy Warrington  5,000 

Bringing Words to Life Blaydon-on-Tyne  5,000 

Chestnut Grove 
Academy Wandsworth  5,000 

Clio’s Company London  5,000 

Friends of Castledon 
School Wickford  5,000 

Future Frontiers London  5,000 

Hamilton Lodge School 
and College for Deaf 
Children Brighton  5,000 

Highgate Primary 
School London  5,000 *

Leigh Primary School Tonbridge  5,000 

Mount Saint 
Catherine’s Out of 
School Club Armagh  5,000 

Portland College Mansfield  5,000 *

Priory Primary School Hull  5,000 *

PTFA of Delph Side 
School Skelmersdale  5,000 

Quest For Learning 
(formerly Reading 
Quest) Oxford  5,000 

Scarning Pre School Norfolk  5,000 

Selside School 
Association Kendal  5,000 

Sound Waves South 
West Music & Music 
Therapy Trust Bude  5,000 

St Helen’s Primary 
School Alveston  5,000 

Story Wood School and 
Children’s Centre Birmingham  5,000 

The Friends of Valence 
School Westerham  5,000 

The Loyne Special 
School Lancaster  5,000 

Uttlesford Buffy Bus 
Association Saffron Walden  5,000 

Warstones Primary 
School Wolverhampton  5,000 

ABC to Read (Assisting 
Berkshire Children) Reading  4,500 *

Friends of Victoria 
School Birmingham  3,500 

Northdale Horticulture Northallerton  3,500 

Architecture Centre Bristol  3,000 

Friends of Meridian 
Primary School London  3,000 

Friends of Morecambe 
Bay Morecambe  3,000 

Friends of Ysgol Maes 
Hyfryd Flintshire  3,000 *

Furze Platt Infant 
School Maidenhead  3,000 

Newlaithes Infant 
School Carlisle  3,000 

Perryfields Junior 
School Chelmsford  3,000 

The Friends of the 
Pines School Birmingham  2,000 *

Culvers House Primary 
School Mitcham  1,500 

University of Oxford Oxford  1,250 

Barnes Infant Academy Sunderland  1,000 

Community Leeds After 
School Study Support Leeds  1,000 

St Teresa’s Catholic 
Primary School St Helens  1,000 

The Boulevard Centre 
(Hull School Girl Mums) Hull  1,000 

Whitley Chapel C of E 
First School Hexham  1,000 *

Place2Be London  500 

Shipham Church of 
England First School Shipham  500 

Total for Education  931,950 

(Total number of grants: 103)

Environment £

Borders Forest Trust Jedburgh  20,000 

Caring For Life Leeds  20,000 

Goodwood Education 
Trust Chichester  20,000 

Keep Britain Tidy National  20,000 

South West Coast Path 
Association Ivybridge  20,000 

Cymdeithas Eryri 
(Snowdonia Society) Caernarfon  18,000 *

Friends of Rhyddings 
Park Accrington  15,000 *

John Muir Trust Perthshire  15,000 

Young People’s Trust 
for the Environment National  15,000 

The Outdoor Trust Cheltenham  13,000 

A Rocha UK London  10,000 

Ballinderry Rivers Trust Cookstown  10,000 
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Homemakers 
Community Recycling Abergavenny  10,000 

Loch Lomond & The 
Trossachs Countryside 
Trust Balloch  10,000 

Moor Trees South Brent  10,000 

Norfolk Mills and 
Pumps Trust (Norfolk 
Windmills Trust) Dereham  10,000 

Stroud Valleys Project Stroud  10,000 

The Frozen Ark Project Leicester  10,000 

The Prospects 
Foundation Accrington  10,000 

The Royal Botanic 
Garden Edinburgh Edinburgh  10,000 

The Steel Valley Project Sheffield  10,000 

Trees for Life Forres  10,000 

EcoACTIVE Education London  7,500 

Martineau Gardens Birmingham  7,500 

North Devon 
Environmental Trust Braunton  7,500 *

Wild Oxfordshire Abingdon  6,000 *

Clyde River Foundation Glasgow  5,000 

Durham Wildlife Trust Houghton-le-
Spring  5,000 

Westland Countryside 
Stewards Kilkhampton  5,000 

Brogdale Collections Faversham  2,500 

Bruton Primary PSA Somerset  2,000 

North East Environment 
Network Durham  2,000 

Total for Environment  346,000 

(Total number of grants: 32)

Faith £

Bethesda Methodist 
Church Bristol  20,000 *

Busbridge and 
Hambledon Church Surrey  20,000 

Emmanuel Church West Hampstead  20,000 

Highway Church Penryn  20,000 

Histon Methodist 
Church Cambridge  20,000 *

PCC of St George-in-
the-East with St Paul London  20,000 

St Clement PCC Truro  20,000 

St John the Evangelist 
Parish Church Downpatrick  20,000 

St Mary’s Church Oxted  20,000 *

St Marys Church 
Melton Mowbray Melton Mowbray  20,000 *

St Michael & All Angels London  20,000 

St Michael’s Church Budbrooke  20,000 

St Vedast-alias-Foster London  20,000 

St George’s Church Swallowbeck  20,000 

St Helen Auckland Bishop Auckland  20,000 

St Mary’s Church Harrow on the Hill  20,000 

St Peter’s Church 
Community Project Wargrave  20,000 

The King’s Cross 
Church Hexthorpe Doncaster  20,000 

The PCC Of The 
Ecclesiastical Parish 
Of St Margaret’s West 
Hoathly East Grinstead  20,000 

Bishop Hannington 
Memorial Church Hove  15,000 

Crediton Methodist 
Church Crediton  15,000 *

Havering Road 
Methodist Church Romford  15,000 

Holy Trinity Church Minchinhampton  15,000 *

Liverton PCC Saltburn-by-the-
Sea  15,000 

PCC of Trinity Church Ossett  15,000 

Raloo Presbyterian 
Church Larne  15,000 *

Sancreed PCC Cornwall  15,000 

St Barnabas 
Community Project Oldham  15,000 

St Catherine’s Church Towersey  15,000 

St Peter’s Church Woodbridge  15,000 

St Peter’s Church Wormleighton  15,000 

St Saviour & St Peter Eastbourne  15,000 

St Helen’s Church Nottingham  15,000 

St Mary’s Church Watford  15,000 

Tarporley Baptist & 
Methodist Church Tarporley  15,000 

Underwood Baptist 
Free Church Newport  15,000 *

Westbury on Trym 
Methodist Church Bristol  15,000 

Wiveliscombe PCC - St 
Andrews Church Taunton  15,000 

All Saints Church PCC 
Stand Manchester  12,500 

All Saints Church Barry  10,000 

All Saints Church, 
Bolton Percy York  10,000 

Badby Parochial Church 
Council (PCC) Daventry  10,000 

Bilton Area Methodist 
Church Harrogate  10,000 

Brentwood Vineyard 
Church Brentwood  10,000 

Brunswick Methodist 
Church Newcastle  10,000 

Cannington United 
Reformed Church Bridgwater  10,000 
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Chichester Cathedral 
Choral Foundation 
Fund Chichester  10,000 

Christ Church 
Kensington London  10,000 

Christ Church W4/St 
Alban’s London  10,000 

Church of St Mary the 
Virgin Denbury Newton Abbot  10,000 

Cornerstone Church Bournemouth  10,000 

Cornerstones Centre 
for the Community 
at Chester-le-Street 
Methodist Church Washington  10,000 

Crown Jesus Ministries Belfast  10,000 

Croydon Minster Croydon  10,000 

Freedom City Church 
(FCC) Cumbernauld  10,000 

Friends of St Mary’s 
Church Bletsoe Bedford  10,000 

Gunwen Methodist 
Chapel Bodmin  10,000 

Hampton Hill United 
Reformed Church Hampton Hill  10,000 

Harmony Hill 
Presbyterian Church Lisburn  10,000 

Hattersley Baptist 
Church Hyde  10,000 

Hope Church Rhondda Tonypandy  10,000 

King’s Sutton, St Peter 
& St Paul Banbury  10,000 

Kingstone PCC Hereford  10,000 *

Parish Church of St 
John the Evangelist 
Staplegrove Taunton Taunton  10,000 

Parish of St Matthew 
with St Paul Winchester  10,000 

PCC of Great Somerford Chippenham  10,000 *

PCC of St James The 
Apostle North Tawton  10,000 

PCC of St Mary’s 
Church York  10,000 

PCC of St Thomas the 
Martyr Overmonnow  10,000 

PCC of Swarraton & 
Northington Alresford  10,000 

Pickering Methodist 
Church Pickering  10,000 

Plaxtol PCC Sevenoaks  10,000 

Renewal Christian 
Centre Solihull  10,000 

Sacred Heart and 
St Margret Mary RC 
Church Birmingham  10,000 

St Andrews Church Reading  10,000 

St Andrew’s Church Countesthorpe  10,000 

St Andrews Church Middleton  10,000 

St Anne’s Church, 
Corstorphine Edinburgh  10,000 

St Augustine’s Parish 
Church Rumney Cardiff  10,000 

St Bartholomew Ledbury  10,000 

St Edith’s Church Rugby  10,000 

St Edith’s Grimoldby Louth  10,000 

St George’s Church Tredegar  10,000 

St Gregory & St Martin Wye  10,000 

St James (Church of 
Ireland) Donaghedy  10,000 

St John the Baptist 
Church, Holland Road London  10,000 

St John the Evangelist 
Redhill Redhill  10,000 

St John’s Church Weston Rhyn  10,000 

St Katharine’s, The 
Danish Church in 
London London  10,000 

St Leonard’s Church Pitcombe  10,000 *

St Luke’s Church Chepstow  10,000 

St Luke’s Church Gloucestershire  10,000 

St Martha’s Methodist 
Church Tring  10,000 *

St Mary the Virgin Baldock  10,000 

St Mary the Virgin 
Sedgeford Sedgeford  10,000 

St Mary’s Church 
Broadwater Worthing  10,000 

St Mary’s Church 
Byfleet Byfleet  10,000 

St Mary’s Church, 
Kemp Town Brighton  10,000 

St Matthew’s Church Perth  10,000 

St Mawgan-In-Meneage 
Parish Church Helston  10,000 

St Michael’s Church Chiswick  10,000 

St Mildred’s Church Addiscombe  10,000 

St Nicholas Church Liverpool  10,000 

St Nicolas Church Pevensey  10,000 

St Patrick’s RC Church Oldham  10,000 

St Paul’s Church 
Compstall Stockport  10,000 

St Stephens Church, 
Astley Manchester  10,000 

St Thomas The Apostle 
Exeter Exeter  10,000 

St Veep Church Looe  10,000 

St Mary & St Laurence 
Parish Church Chesterfield  10,000 

St Stephen’s Roman 
Catholic Church Blairgowrie  10,000 

St Werburgh’s Church, 
Kingsley Stoke-on-Trent  10,000 *
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St Mary’s Church Wargrave  10,000 

Sutton Community 
Works Sutton  10,000 *

The Friends of St 
Peter’s Church  Old Cogan  10,000 *

The Minster Church of 
Saints Thomas Newport  10,000 

The PCC of St Francis 
Church Salisbury  10,000 

The PCC of the 
Ecclesiastical Parish of 
St Saviours Bath  10,000 

The PCC Of The 
Ecclesiastical Parish Of 
Tamworth Tamworth  10,000 

Torrisholme Methodist 
Church & Community 
Centre Morecambe  10,000 

Wesley Church Centre Chester  10,000 

Winterley Methodist 
Church and Community 
Centre Sandbach  10,000 

All Saints Church Newport Pagnell  7,500 

All Saints Church 
Shelley Ipswich  7,500 

All Saints Liverpool Liverpool  7,500 

All Saints Parish 
Church, Leamington 
Priors Leamington Spa  7,500 

All Saints Welborne Dereham  7,500 

All Saints with St 
Frideswyde PCC Liverpool  7,500 

Batcombe PCC Shepton Mallet  7,500 

Baxter United Reformed 
Church Kidderminster  7,500 

Blaenycwm Baptist 
Chapel Treherbert  7,500 *

Christ Church 
Barnstaple Barnstaple  7,500 

Elworth Methodist 
Church Cheshire  7,500 *

Erpingham Church Norwich  7,500 

Hailsham Parish 
Church Hailsham  7,500 

Hall Green United 
Community Church Birmingham  7,500 

Holy Ascension Church 
Community Centre Walsall  7,500 

Holy Trinity Church 
Bolton Le Sands Carnforth  7,500 

Marton United 
Reformed Church Blackpool  7,500 *

Menzieshill Parish 
Church Dundee  7,500 

PCC of The Ecclestial  
Parish of St Thomas 
Garstang Preston  7,500 

Queen Street Methodist 
Central Hall Scarborough  7,500 

Saint Olave’s with St 
Giles York  7,500 

Shefford Methodist 
Church Shefford  7,500 

St Andrew’s Church Sleaford  7,500 

St Anne’s Church Dunbar  7,500 

St Anthony’s Church Dover  7,500 

St Bede with St 
Clement Toxteth Liverpool  7,500 *

St Elizabeth’s Church 
Aspull Wigan  7,500 

St Giles Church Taunton  7,500 

St James The Great 
East Malling East Malling  7,500 

St Marks Baptist 
Church Bristol  7,500 

St Mary Magdalene 
Church Leamington Spa  7,500 

St Mary the Virgin Newent  7,500 

St Mary the Virgin, 
Gissing Norfolk  7,500 *

St Mary’s & Holy Trinity Bow  7,500 

St Mary’s Church Apuldram  7,500 

St Michael and All 
Angels Church PCC Keighley  7,500 

St Neot Church Liskeard  7,500 

St Stephen’s Church 
Winsham Chard  7,500 

St Stephen’s Church, 
Canonbury London  7,500 *

St Thomas and St Luke 
(Top Church) PCC Dudley  7,500 

St Thomas Community 
Project Birmingham  7,500 

St Tysilio’s, Sellack Ross-on-Wye  7,500 

St Bartholomew’s 
Church Melton Mowbray  7,500 *

St Peter’s Ipswich  7,500 *

Stepps Parish Church Glasgow  7,500 

Street United Reformed 
Church Street  7,500 

The Church of St Mary 
the Virgin Melton Mowbray  7,500 

The Church of the 
Sacred Heart of Jesus Reading  7,500 

The Friends of Quarr 
Abbey Ryde  7,500 

The PCC of St Mary’s 
Church Higham  7,500 

The Priory Church of St 
Mary & St Blaise, Boxgrove  7,500 
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The Priory Church of St 
Peter and St Paul Leominster  7,500 

The Vine Trust of St 
Mary’s Laisterdyke Bradford  7,500 *

All Hallows Church Clitheroe  5,000 *

All Saints Church Ryde  5,000 

All Saints Church Baschurch  5,000 

All Saints Church Sproughton  5,000 

All Saints Church Weybourne  5,000 

All Saints Church 
Thelwall Warrington  5,000 

All Saints Church, Curry 
Mallet Taunton  5,000 

All Saints PCC Lightwater  5,000 

Alyth Parish Church Alyth  5,000 

Apex Church Peterhead  5,000 

Bishop’s Castle PCC Shropshire  5,000 

Burghead Free Church Elgin  5,000 

Burnmoor St Barnabas 
Church

Houghton-le-
Spring  5,000 

Cheddar Church House Cheddar  5,000 

Christ Church 
Brunswick Manchester  5,000 

Christ Church P.C.C Northampton  5,000 

Colonsay & Oronsay 
Parish Church Argyll  5,000 

Coney Hill Baptist 
Church West Wickham  5,000 *

Durham YFC Durham  5,000 

Fairhill Methodist 
Church Cwmbran  5,000 

Godalming United 
Church Godalming  5,000 

Great Chesham PCC Chesham  5,000 

Harkstead Church 
Heritage Ipswich  5,000 

Holy Cross Church 
Middlezoy Somerset  5,000 

Holy Trinity Church Bishop’s Stortford  5,000 

Holy Trinity Church Old 
Hill Cradley Heath  5,000 

Holy Trinity Church 
Washington Washington  5,000 

Holy Trinity Church, 
Yockleton Shrewsbury  5,000 

LCCT: InterACT Church 
and Community 
Partnership Leeds  5,000 

Ludham PCC Gt. Yarmouth  5,000 *

Parish Church of St 
John & St Petroc Devoran  5,000 

Parish Church of St 
Peter-ad-Vincula Harlow  5,000 

PCC of Deeping St 
James Bourne  5,000 

PCC of St Mary’s 
Church, King’s Pyon Hereford  5,000 

PCC of St Peter’s 
Church, Dormington Hereford  5,000 

PCC of the 
Ecclesiastical Parish of 
Keynsham Keynsham  5,000 

Pointon & 
Sempringham PCC Sleaford  5,000 

Roxton Congregational 
Church Bedford  5,000 

Sacred Heart, Catholic 
Church Stoke-on-Trent  5,000 

Saint Mary’s PCC Wigton  5,000 

Saint Stephen and All 
Martyrs Oldham Oldham  5,000 *

Sandholes Presbyterian 
Church Sandholes  5,000 

Sion Mills Presbyterian 
Church Sion Mills  5,000 

South Street Baptist 
Church Sidmouth  5,000 *

SS Peter and Paul Sustead  5,000 *

St Alban the Martyr Northampton  5,000 

St Alkmund’s Church Whitchurch  5,000 

St Andrew 
Whitestaunton Chard  5,000 

St Andrew’s Community 
Action Group Belfast  5,000 

St Botolph’s, Hadstock Cambridge  5,000 

St David’s Church Brecon  5,000 

St Dunstans Parish 
Church Liverpool  5,000 

St Elidyr, East 
Williamston Church Tenby  5,000 

St Gabriel in Stanbury Keighley  5,000 *

St George’s Church Ruishton  5,000 

St Giles Catholic 
Church Cheadle  5,000 

St James Church Blackburn  5,000 

St James’ Church Newcastle upon 
Tyne  5,000 

St James’ Church 
Harvington Evesham  5,000 

St James The Greater 
Church Twycross  5,000 *

St John The Baptist 
Church Shrewsbury  5,000 

St John the Baptist 
Church Huntingdon  5,000 

St John’s Church Kensal Green  5,000 

St Lawrence Parish 
Church Sedgebrook  5,000 

St Lawrence, Lackford, 
CofE Bury St Edmunds  5,000 *
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St Luke’s Methodist 
Church Centre Rochester  5,000 

St Mark CofE Stockland 
Green Birmingham  5,000 

St Martin’s Church North Perrott  5,000 

St Mary Church Burston Diss  5,000 

St Mary Magdalene 
Church Ditcheat  5,000 

St Mary the Virgin, 
Fawdon

Newcastle Upon 
Tyne  5,000 

St Mary’s Church Pilsley  5,000 

St Mary’s Church Willesden  5,000 

St Mary’s Church Worlingworth  5,000 

St Mary’s Church Puttenham  5,000 

St Marys Church & 
Parish Rooms Coventry  5,000 

St Mary’s Church 
Radcliffe-on-Trent Nottingham  5,000 

St Michael & All Angels 
Church Chippenham  5,000 

St Michael’s and All 
Angels Church Aberystwyth  5,000 

St Michael’s Church Congleton  5,000 

St Michael’s Church Bristol  5,000 

St Nectan’s Church Bideford  5,000 

St Nicholas Church Bawtry  5,000 

St Paul’s Church Derby  5,000 

St Peter & St Paul’s 
Church Cranleigh  5,000 

St Peter’s Church Aberdyfi  5,000 

St Peter’s Church Stoke Fleming  5,000 

St Saviour’s Church 
Fairweather Green Bradford  5,000 

St Stephen’s Church Tivoli  5,000 

St Thomas Beckett 
Church Tugby  5,000 

St Thomas Stourbridge Stourbridge  5,000 

St Wilfrid’s Church Pudsey  5,000 

St James Church Yeovil  5,000 

St Mary’s Parish 
Church Rhuddlan  5,000 

St Michael and All 
Angels Church Norfolk  5,000 

St Peter’s Church Windrush  5,000 *

St Thomas Church Lymington  5,000 

St Laurence Church Wellingborough  5,000 

Stand United Reformed 
Church Radcliffe  5,000 

Stornoway Free Church 
of Scotland Stornoway  5,000 

Tamlaghtfinlagan 
Parish Church Ballykelly  5,000 

The Church of St Peter Settle  5,000 

The Church of the 
Ascension Bath Bath  5,000 

The Church of the Holy 
Cross Warwick  5,000 

The Parish Church of St 
Andrew Chippenham  5,000 

The PCC OF St Mark Bedford  5,000 

Upper Caldecote 
Methodist Church Biggleswade  5,000 *

Upton Pyne PCC Exeter  5,000 

Waterfront Community 
Church Swansea  5,000 

Whaddon St Margaret 
of Scotland Gloucester  5,000 

Wylam Methodist 
Church Wylam  5,000 

St Barnabas Church Eltham  4,500 

Parish of Buxted and 
Hadlow Down PPC Buxted  4,000 

St Andrews Church Utterby  4,000 

St Peter the Fisherman Alnwick  4,000 

St Paul’s Church 
Waterhouses Langley Park  4,000 *

St Swithun’s Nately Scures  4,000 

Castle Bromwich Bell 
Restoration Project Birmingham  3,500 

Cawthorne All Saints 
Church Cawthorne  3,500 

Church of the 
Ascension

Newcastle on 
Tyne  3,500 

Highfield Trinity 
Methodist Church Derbyshire  3,500 

St Mark’s Church Nottingham  3,500 

St Mary the Virgin 
Church Eynesbury  3,500 

St Mary’s Church Carew  3,500 

St Peter’s Church Little Ellingham  3,500 

All Hallows Church Cheadle  3,000 

All Saints Church Sittingbourne  3,000 

All Saints Church Wykeham  3,000 

All Saints Church Writtle  3,000 

All Saints Parish Church Otley  3,000 

All Saints, Wick Littlehampton  3,000 *

Derg Parish Church Castlederg  3,000 

Erdington Six Ways 
Baptist Church Birmingham  3,000 

Holy Trinity Church Maidstone  3,000 

Holy Trinity Church Waterhead  3,000 *

Kingussie Parish 
Church Kingussie  3,000 *

Neath Methodist 
Church Neath  3,000 

PCC East Harptree with 
West Harptree and 
Hinton Blewett Bristol  3,000 *

PCC of St Lawrence York  3,000 
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PCC St Peter & St 
Paul’s Church Shelford  3,000 

St Andrew’s Church Stokeinteignhead  3,000 

St Denys Church 
Ibstock Leicester  3,000 

St George’s Church Clun  3,000 

St Mary the Virgin 
Church

Frampton-on- 
Severn  3,000 

St Mary the Virgin 
Church Benfleet  3,000 

St Mary’s Church 
Chiddingfold Godalming  3,000 

St Mary’s Church 
Combs Stowmarket  3,000 *

St Mary’s PCC Weston-on-the- 
Green  3,000 *

St Michael & All Angels 
PCC Bude  3,000 

St Nicolas’ Church Shoreham-by-Sea  3,000 

St Peter’s Church Cransford  3,000 

St Peters Church London  3,000 

St Stephen’s Church 
PCC Steeton Keighley  3,000 

St Thomas of 
Canterbury Hullbridge 
PCC Hockley  3,000 

St Andrew’s and St 
Cuthman’s Church Steyning  3,000 

St George’s Stockport  3,000 

St Peter & St James 
Church C of E Beaworthy  3,000 

St Peter & The Holy 
Rood Episcopal Church 
Thurso Thurso  3,000 

St Peters Church Copt 
Oak Leicester  3,000 

St Andrew’s Church Oving  3,000 

St George’s Church Banbury  3,000 

St Mary’s Church, 
Caerhun Conwy  3,000 

The Apostolic Church Merseyside  3,000 

The Church of St Petroc Ivybridge  3,000 

The Methodist Church Derbys  3,000 

The PCC of the 
Ecclesiastical Parish of 
North Ormesby Middlesbrough  3,000 *

Woodchurch Memorial 
Hall Woodchurch  3,000 *

All Hallows Church 
Woolsery Bideford  2,500 

Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church Boroughbridge  2,500 

Hall Bower Sunday 
School Darwen  2,500 

Instow Parochial 
Church Council (Instow 
PCC) Bideford  2,500 

Newington Bagpath 
with Kingscote PCC Tetbury  2,500 

St Andrews PCC South 
Lopham Diss Norfolk Diss  2,500 

St Edward The 
Confessor Church Sudbrooke  2,500 

St George’s Church, 
Cwmparc Rhondda  2,500 

St James’ Church Keighley  2,500 

St James Southbroom Devizes  2,500 

St James the Great Congleton  2,500 

St John the Evangelist 
Church Bexley  2,500 

St Mark in the Cherry 
Orchard Church Worcester  2,500 

St Mary of Charity Faversham  2,500 

St Mary the Virgin 
Church Bedford  2,500 

St Mary’s Church, 
Snead Clun  2,500 

St Peter’s Church PCC Peterston-super-
Ely  2,500 

St Peter’s Church, 
Penrhosgarnedd Bangor  2,500 

St Botolph Attleborough  2,500 

St Michael’s Church Carmarthen  2,500 

Tabernacle Chapel Carmarthenshire  2,500 *

The Church of St 
Gregory the Great - 
Harpford Sidmouth Devon  2,500 

The Church of the Holy 
Rood Wool  2,500 

The Friends of Saint 
Mary’s Church 
Uffington Faringdon  2,500 

Albrighton Methodist 
Church Wolverhampton  2,000 *

All Saints Church Highbridge  2,000 

All Saints Church Mappleton  2,000 

All Saints Church, 
Clayton West Huddersfield  2,000 

All Souls Church 
Cheriton Folkestone  2,000 

Anglican Parish of Penn 
Street with Holmer 
Green PCC High Wycombe  2,000 *

Carryduff Presbyterian 
Church Ballynahinch  2,000 

Craiglockhart Parish 
Church Edinburgh  2,000 

Fornham All Saints 
Parish Church Bury  2,000 

Full Life Church Rotherham   2,000 
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High Town Methodist 
Church Leighton Buzzard  2,000 

Hill Top Methodist 
Church - Wesley 
Community Association West Bromwich  2,000 

Hurst Green PCC Etchingham  2,000 

Ipstones Church St 
Leonard Staffordshire  2,000 

Llys-y-fran Parish 
Church of St Meilyr Pembrokeshire  2,000 *

Middleton Park Baptist 
Church Leeds  2,000 

Parish of Kenfig Hill Kenfig Hill  2,000 *

PCC of St Andrew’s Hertford  2,000 

St Andrew’s Church 
P.C.C. Great Dunham Swaffham  2,000 

St Anne’s Church Wakefield  2,000 

St Helena Church 
Thoroton Nottingham  2,000 

St John’s Church West 
Ashton Wiltshire  2,000 

St Leonard’s Church Denton  2,000 *

St Luke’s PCC Southend-on-Sea  2,000 

St Margaret’s PCC Long 
Riston Hull  2,000 

St Mary’s Church Meysey Hampton  2,000 

St Paul’s Church Woodford Bridge  2,000 *

St Raphael’s Church 
Huccaby Yelverton  2,000 

St John the Evangelist 
Episcopal Church Stranraer  2,000 

The Parish of Cadoxton-
juxta-Barry

The Vale of 
Glamorgan  2,000 

The PCC of Gimingham Norfolk  2,000 

Trinity Methodist 
Church Mirfield  2,000 

Willersey Methodist 
Church Broadway  2,000 

Church of St Mary the 
Virgin Halkyn  1,500 

St David’s Church, 
Betws Ammanford Ammanford  1,500 

The Family Trust Maidstone  1,500 

All Saints Church Deane  1,000 

Church of St Mary Fotherby  1,000 

New Brimington 
Methodist Church Chesterfield  1,000 

North Shields 
Methodist Church North Shields  1,000 

Saint Leonard’s Church Hardwick  1,000 

Seion Newydd Baptist 
Chapel Swansea  1,000 

St Deny’s Church 
Stonton Wyville

Market 
Harborough  1,000 

The Greek Orthodox 
Church of St Mary 
Magdalene

St Leonards-on- 
Sea  1,000 

Ucadd (United 
Christians Action in 
Dawlish and District) Dawlish  1,000 

Total for Faith 2,798,000 

(Total number of grants: 412)

Health £

Acorns Children’s 
Hospice Birmingham  20,000 *

Blythe House Hospice High Peak  20,000 

British Tinnitus 
Association National  20,000 

Compton Hospice Wolverhampton  20,000 

Cornwall Hospice Care St Austell  20,000 

East Cheshire Hospice Macclesfield  20,000 

Harrogate Hospital and 
Community Charity Harrogate  20,000 

Helen & Douglas House Oxford  20,000 

Katharine House 
Hospice Stafford  20,000 

MIND Restormel 
Association For Mental 
Health Bodmin  20,000 

Oakleaf Enterprise Guildford  20,000 

Shine Peterborough  20,000 

Soundwell Music 
Therapy Trust Bradford on Avon  20,000 

The Cellar Trust Bradford  20,000 

Young Concern Trust 
(YCT) Harlow  20,000 

Anorexia and Bulimia 
Care Bristol  15,000 

Bradford Cancer 
Support Bradford  15,000 

Brain Injury Matters NI Belfast  15,000 

Brainstrust Cowes  15,000 

British Dyslexia 
Association Helpline Bracknell  15,000 

Devon & Exeter 
Spastics Society Exeter  15,000 

Endometriosis UK London  15,000 

Hospiscare Exeter  15,000 *

Hull and East Yorkshire 
Mind Hull  15,000 

Llanelli Mind Llanelli  15,000 

Peace Hospice Care Watford  15,000 

Rainbow Trust 
Children’s Charity Leatherhead  15,000 

Restore Oxford  15,000 

Scottish Association for 
Mental Health (SAMH) Edinburgh  15,000 

St Matthew’s House Sheffield  15,000 
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St Michael’s Hospice Harrogate  15,000 

Vascular Society GB: 
Circulation Foundation West Lothian  15,000 

Arts & Minds Cambridge  10,000 

Arts Together Westbury  10,000 

Birmingham 
Samaritans Birmingham  10,000 

Blyth Star Enterprises 
Ltd Blyth  10,000 

Body & Soul London  10,000 

Chapter (West 
Cheshire) Ltd Chester  10,000 

Cransley Hospice Trust Kettering  10,000 

Dove Cottage Day 
Hospice Ltd Melton Mowbray  10,000 

Dyspraxia Foundation Hitchin  10,000 

Hillside Clubhouse London  10,000 

Hope for Tomorrow Tetbury  10,000 *

Lewis-Manning Trust Poole  10,000 

Longfield Minchinhampton  10,000 *

ME North East County Durham  10,000 *

Mind in West Cumbria Workington  10,000 

S.P.A (Peggy Dodd) 
Bath Bath  10,000 

Scottish Huntington’s 
Association Paisley  10,000 

Spinal Muscular 
Atrophy Support UK

Stratford upon 
Avon  10,000 

St Oswalds Hospice Newcastle upon 
Tyne  10,000 

Sussex Association 
for Spina Bifida 
& Hydrocephalus 
(SASBAH) Heathfield  10,000 

Thames Valley Positive 
Support Slough  10,000 

The Butterfly Trust Edinburgh  10,000 

The Dove Service Stoke-on-Trent  10,000 

The Dystonia Society London  10,000 

The Greenfingers 
Charity Beaconsfield  10,000 

The Helios Foundation London  10,000 

The PBC Foundation Edinburgh  10,000 

The Sara Lee Trust Hastings  10,000 

Trauma Recovery 
Centre Bath  10,000 

Tuberous Sclerosis 
Association London  10,000 

Basingstoke Mencap 
Services Ltd Basingstoke  7,500 

Make A Move Keynsham  7,500 

Clowns in the Sky London  5,000 

Community Cancer 
Centre West Drayton  5,000 

Epilepsy Connections Glasgow  5,000 

Mental Health 
Foundation National  5,000 

MS Therapy Centre 
Norfolk Norwich  5,000 

Raw Material Music 
and Media Education 
Ltd London  5,000 *

Rays of Sunshine 
Children’s Charity Wembley  5,000 

Side By Side Children 
Ltd London  5,000 

The Liesel Angel Trust Hounslow  5,000 

Womankind, Bristol 
Women’s Therapy 
Centre Bristol  5,000 

42nd Street Manchester  3,000 

Children with Cystic 
Fibrosis Dream 
Holidays Hinckley  3,000 

Hospice at Home Penrith  3,000 

Rotherham Cancer 
Care Centre Rotherham  3,000 

Sudden Productions Birmingham  3,000 

The Bereavement 
Counselling Service Plymouth  3,000 

Women’s Health 
Information and 
Support Centre 
(WHISC) Liverpool  3,000 

The ARNI Institute Lingfield  2,000 

The Bracken Trust 
Cancer Support Centre Powys  2,000 

Total for Health  945,000 

(Total number of grants: 83)

Museums & Heritage £

Canalside Heritage 
Centre Nottingham  20,000 

Maidstone Museums’ 
Foundation Maidstone  20,000 

The Friends of Butser 
Ancient Farm Waterlooville  20,000 

Bridport Museum Trust Bridport  15,000 

Museum of Brands London  14,400 

Bournville Village Trust Birmingham  10,000 

Amberley Museum & 
Heritage Centre Near Arundel  7,500 

The Worcestershire 
Building Preservation 
Trust Kidderminster  5,000 

Coldharbour Mill Trust 
Ltd Cullompton  3,000 

Total for Museums & 
Heritage  114,900 

(Total number of grants: 9)
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Welfare £

Aberdeen Cyrenians Aberdeen  20,000 

Age UK Cheshire East Macclesfield  20,000 

Age UK Essex Chelmsford  20,000 

Age UK Newcastle Newcastle upon 
Tyne  20,000 

Age UK Richmond upon 
Thames East Sheen  20,000 

Barrow and Districts 
Society for the Blind Barrow-in-Furness  20,000 

Blind in Business National  20,000 

Boaz Trust Manchester  20,000 

Bournemouth Churches 
Housing Association 
Ltd Bournemouth  20,000 

Brighton & Hove Speak 
Out Hove  20,000 

Care and Repair 
Edinburgh Edinburgh  20,000 

CareTrade Charitable 
Trust London  20,000 

Caring Hands Charity Newcastle upon 
Tyne  20,000 

Chaos Theory Woodford Green  20,000 

Child Bereavement UK Carlisle  20,000 

Children and Families 
Staffordshire Stoke-on-Trent  20,000 

Chooselife Cymru Llanelli  20,000 

Circles South West Bournemouth  20,000 *

Cotteridge Church Day 
Centre Birmingham  20,000 

Cycle-R Cannock  20,000 

Dorset Blind 
Association Poole  20,000 

Equation 
Nottinghamshire Nottingham  20,000 

Forward Assist Ltd Cramlington  20,000 

Fresh Start (Scotland) Edinburgh  20,000 

Friends First Hove  20,000 

Glass Door Homeless 
Charity London  20,000 

Grove Cottage - Bishops 
Stortford Mencap Bishops Stortford  20,000 

Heads On Worthing  20,000 

Hope Housing, Training 
and Support Ltd Bournemouth  20,000 

HospiceCare North 
Northumberland Alnwick  20,000 

Hospitality and Hope South Shields  20,000 *

Lincolnshire House 
Association Scunthorpe  20,000 

Narthex Sparkhill Birmingham  20,000 

Prisoners Abroad National  20,000 

Puzzle Centre Trust Ltd Buckingham  20,000 

Ryders Green 
Methodist Day Centre West Bromwich  20,000 

Save The Family Chester  20,000 

Serenity House, Bristol 
Alcoholism Recovery 
Service (B.A.R.S) Bristol  20,000 *

Shekinah Plymouth  20,000 

Shepherds Bush 
Families Project & 
Children’s Centre London  20,000 

Street Teams Walsall  20,000 

Sycamore Trust (UK) National  20,000 

The Bike Project London  20,000 

The Farming 
Community Network Northampton  20,000 

The Footprints Project Bournemouth  20,000 

The Nelson Trust Stroud  20,000 

The Nia Project London  20,000 

The Preshal Trust Glasgow  20,000 

The Upper Room (St 
Saviour’s) London  20,000 

White Lodge Centre Chertsey  20,000 *

WomenCentre Ltd Halifax  20,000 

You Make It London  20,000 

Age Concern North 
Norfolk Sheringham  15,000 

Age Cymru Ceredigion Aberystwyth  15,000 

Carers’ Support Service 
- Warwickshire Young 
Carers’ Project Warwickshire  15,000 

Children 1st Edinburgh  15,000 

Darlington Mind Ltd Darlington  15,000 

Disability Advice West 
Lancs Skelmersdale  15,000 

Down’s Syndrome 
Scotland Edinburgh  15,000 

Elmbridge Rentstart 
(UK) Ltd Esher  15,000 

Family Space Cheltenhm  15,000 

Good Shepherd 
Ministry Wolverhampton  15,000 

Handcrafted Projects Durham  15,000 *

Home-Start Central & 
West Cheshire Cheshire  15,000 

Home-Start North East 
Worcestershire Reddtich  15,000 

Home-Start 
Wellingborough & 
District Wellingborough  15,000 

Instant Neighbour Aberdeen  15,000 

Justlife Foundation Manchester  15,000 

Learning to Grow Magheramorne  15,000 

Methodist Action North 
West Preston  15,000 

Mind in Mid Herts St Albans  15,000 
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Mudlarks Hertford  15,000 

Orchardville Society Belfast  15,000 

Room to Heal London  15,000 

Rowan Alba Edinburgh  15,000 

St Basils Birmingham  15,000 

Tamba, Twins and 
Multiple Births 
Association Aldershot  15,000 

The Charity of Amy 
Temple Dover  15,000 

The Manna Society London  15,000 

The People’s Kitchen Newcastle  15,000 

The Running Charity London  15,000 

The Vine Centre Aldershot  15,000 

Worthing Women’s 
Aid trading as Safe in 
Sussex Worthing  15,000 

YMCA Manchester Manchester  15,000 

YoungDementia UK National  15,000 

Youth and Families 
Matter (YFM) Totton  15,000 

Accuro (Care Services) Harlow  10,000 *

ACT (Aldates 
Community 
Transformation 
Initiatives) Oxford  10,000 

Action For ASD Burnley  10,000 

Age Concern Dundee Dundee  10,000 

Age UK Bath and North 
East Somerset Bath  10,000 

Age UK Bristol Bristol  10,000 

Age UK Mid Devon Tiverton  10,000 

Age UK South Lakeland Kendal  10,000 

Age UK Westminster London  10,000 *

Age UK Wigan Borough Wigan  10,000 

Asperger East Anglia Norwich  10,000 

Autism Bedfordshire Bedford  10,000 

Azalea Luton  10,000 

Baillieston Community 
Care Glasgow  10,000 

Basis Yorkshire Leeds  10,000 

Behind Closed Doors Leeds  10,000 

Bishop Creighton 
House London  10,000 

Bliss Services Blyth  10,000 

Bolton Carers Support Bolton  10,000 

Break Norwich  10,000 

Bristol Methodist 
Centre Bristol  10,000 

Bristol Refugee Rights 
(BRR) Bristol  10,000 

British Blind Sport National  10,000 

BritSom London  10,000 

Brunswick Organic 
Nurseries Ltd York  10,000 

Carers Gloucestershire Gloucester  10,000 

Caritas Diocese of 
Salford Salford  10,000 

CAUSE Belfast  10,000 

Cheshire Autism 
Practical Support Ltd 
(ChAPS) Frodsham  10,000 

Chester and District 
Federation of the Blind Ellesmere Port  10,000 

Child Brain Injury Trust National  10,000 

Connects & Co Norwich  10,000 

Cornwater Clubs 
(Ravenshead) Ltd Nottingham  10,000 

Dementia Concern London  10,000 

Derventio Housing 
Trust CIC Derby  10,000 

Dundee International 
Women’s Centre Dundee  10,000 

Enable NI Richhill  10,000 

Father Hudson’s Care Coleshill  10,000 

Futures Unlocked Rugby  10,000 

Glenorchy United 
Reformed Church Exmouth  10,000 

Golden-Oldies Radstock  10,000 

Harrow Mencap Harrow  10,000 

Hawkspring Bristol  10,000 

Home-Start Blaby 
District Oadby and 
Wigston Leicester  10,000 

Home-Start Glasgow 
North Glasgow  10,000 

HOPE Kitchen SCIO Oban  10,000 

Indepen-dance 
(Scotland) Ltd Glasgow  10,000 

Inn Churches Bradford  10,000 

Interplay (Integrated 
Play and Leisure) Swansea  10,000 

Islington Bangladesh 
Association London  10,000 

JustDifferent Arundel  10,000 

Learn English At Home Kingston  10,000 

Leeway Domestic 
Violence and Abuse 
Services Norwich  10,000 

Ley Community Drug 
Services Oxford  10,000 

Life Cycle UK Bristol  10,000 

Lifeline (Harrogate) Ltd Harrogate  10,000 

Lifespan                                                                                               Co. Durham 10,000 

Little Gate Farm Rye  10,000 

Maggs Day Centre Worcester  10,000 

Magpie Dance Bromley  10,000 

Merton Voluntary 
Service Council London  10,000 

Nancy Oldfield Trust Norwich  10,000 
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NANSA Norwich  10,000 

Newcastle Society for 
Blind People (NSBP)

Newcastle upon 
Tyne  10,000 

Newington Day Centre Belfast  10,000 

Newpin Northern 
Ireland Derry  10,000 

NIDAS Mansfield  10,000 

North West Kent 
Volunteer Centre Dartford  10,000 

North West Women’s 
Centre Glasgow  10,000 

Omega, The National 
Association for End of 
Life Care Shrewsbury  10,000 

OpenStoryTellers Frome  10,000 

Perry RDA Ltd Baschurch  10,000 

Praxis Community 
Projects London  10,000 

Prison Arts Foundation Belfast  10,000 

Prison Reform Trust National  10,000 

Pursuing Independent 
Paths London  10,000 *

Reducing the Risk of 
Domestic Abuse Oxford  10,000 *

Rest Haven Residential 
Home Exmouth  10,000 

Royal Society for Blind 
Children (RSBC) National  10,000 

Safe Families for 
Children Scotland Edinburgh  10,000 

Scarborough and 
Ryedale Carers 
Resource Scarborough  10,000 

SELFA (Skipton 
Extended Learning For 
All) Skipton  10,000 

Sheffield Mencap & 
Gateway Sheffield  10,000 

SHOC, Slough 
Homeless Our Concern Slough  10,000 

Sikh Sanjog Edinburgh  10,000 

Somerset Sight Ltd Taunton  10,000 

South West Action for 
Learning and Living Our 
Way (SWALLOW) Radstock  10,000 

Speakup Self Advocacy 
Ltd Rotherham  10,000 

Stand Alone London  10,000 

Street Connect Glasgow  10,000 

SWEDA (Somerset 
& Wessex Eating 
Disorders Association) Shepton Mallet  10,000 

Thames Reach Charity London  10,000 

The Bethany Children’s 
Trust

Kingston upon 
Thames  10,000 

The Bridge (East 
Midlands) Loughborough  10,000 

The Comfrey Project Gateshead  10,000 

The Dash Charity Slough  10,000 

The Family Haven Gloucester  10,000 

The Green Team Goole  10,000 

The Kiloran Trust London  10,000 

The Legacy Rainbow 
House Ormskirk  10,000 

The Wheelyboat Trust Petworth  10,000 

Three Spires Family 
Support Trust Coventry  10,000 

Tong & Laisterdyke PCC 
- Family Centre Bradford  10,000 

Trust Women’s Project London  10,000 

Vision Housing 
Consultancy Services Croydon  10,000 *

Walthew House Stockport  10,000 

West Cumbria 
Domestic Violence 
Support Workington  10,000 

women@thewell London  10,000 

York and District 
Citizens Advice Bureau York  10,000 

York Neighbours York  10,000 

York Road Project Woking  10,000 

Age Concern Forest of 
Dean Ross-on-Wye  7,500 

Arundel Castle Cricket 
Foundation Arundel  7,500 

Barnet Lone Parent 
Centre London  7,500 

Carefree Kids London  7,500 

Cerebral Palsy Plus Bristol  7,500 

Cheltenham Housing 
Aid Centre (CHAC) Cheltenham  7,500 

Emmanuel House Nottingham  7,500 *

Friends for Leisure Congleton  7,500 

Fun in Action for 
Children Brighton  7,500 *

Herefordshire Headway Hereford  7,500 

Home-Start Down 
District Downpatrick  7,500 

Home-Start North West 
Hampshire Basingstoke  7,500 

Home-Start Seaham Seaham  7,500 

Home-Start South East 
Dorset Bournemouth  7,500 

Home-Start St Helens                                                                                St Helens 7,500

Home-Start Trafford & 
Salford Manchester  7,500 

Joanna Leeds Leeds  7,500 

KIDS London  7,500 

London Wheelchair 
Rugby Club London  7,500 
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Michael Roberts 
Charitable Trust Harlow  7,500 

Opportunity Sports 
Foundation Chorley  7,500 

PARC Braintree  7,500 

Proteus Theatre 
Company Ltd Basingstoke  7,500 

River of Life Community 
Church Haverhill  7,500 

SEARCH - CIO services 
for older people

Newcastle upon 
Tyne  7,500 

Shrewsbury Christian 
Centre Association Shrewsbury  7,500 

Space4Autism Macclesfield  7,500 

St Mungo’s London  7,500 

Talbot House Support 
Centre Manchester  7,500 

The HAND Partnership Hoveton  7,500 

The Shelter Project 
Hounslow Chiswick  7,500 

The Volunteer Link 
Scheme London  7,500 

Umbrella Derby and 
Derbyshire Derby  7,500 

Building Circles in 
Gloucestershire Cheltenham  7,000 

Home-Start Teignbridge Newton Abbot  7,000 

Oblong Ltd Leeds  7,000 

With Kids Glasgow  7,000 

Airedale Voluntary Drug 
& Alcohol Agency Ltd - 
Project 6 Keighley  6,200 

Apex Charitable Trust St Helens  6,200 

Disability Action 
Yorkshire Harrogate  6,200 

Falcon Support 
Services e.m Ltd Loughborough  6,200 

Hope Support Services Ross-on-Wye  6,200 

KeyChanges - Unlocking 
Women’s Potential Sheffield  6,200 

LD:NorthEast Wallsend  6,200 

Malvern Special 
Families Malvern  6,200 

SAFE Networks Manchester  6,200 

Sight Advice South 
Lakes Kendal  6,200 

Staffordshire Women’s 
Aid Stafford  6,200 

The Wellspring 
Stockport Ltd Stockport  6,200 *

Women Acting In 
Today’s Society Birmingham  6,200 

Prisoners’ Penfriends London  6,000 *

Relate Brighton Hove  6,000 *

The Horticultural 
Therapy Trust  (HTT) Plymouth  6,000 

Voluntary Sector 
Gateway West Lothian Bathgate  6,000 

Ace Cardiff Ltd Cardiff  5,000 

Acting on Impulse Manchester  5,000 

Age UK Blackburn with 
Darwen Blackburn  5,000 

Amina - Muslim 
Women’s Resource 
Centre Glasgow  5,000 

BD4 Community Trust Bradford  5,000 

Bedford Guild House Bedford  5,000 

Breakthrough UK Crumpsall  5,000 

Bridgend Centre Bollington  5,000 *

Bringing Hope Birmingham  5,000 

Cascade Theatre 
Company Newquay  5,000 

Chichester Diocesan 
Association for Family 
Support Work Brighton  5,000 

Coundon Care Centre 
Charity Coventry  5,000 

Down Right Brilliant 
(Newry and Mourne 
Down’s Sydrome Parent 
Support Group) Banbridge  5,000 

Elizabeth Fry Charity Reading  5,000 *

Erlas Victorian Walled 
Garden Wrexham  5,000 

Faversham Assistance 
Centre Faversham  5,000 

Fife Alcohol Support 
Service Kirkcaldy  5,000 

Folkestone Rainbow 
Centre Folkestone  5,000 

Glasgow Children’s 
Holiday Scheme Glasgow  5,000 *

Gospel Oak Community 
Centre Birmingham  5,000 

Harehills English 
Language Project 
(H.E.L.P) Leeds  5,000 

Helping Hands 
Community Trust Leicester  5,000 

Hillingdon Play 
Association Hayes  5,000 

Home Start Derby Derby  5,000 

Home-Start Corby Peterborough  5,000 

Home-Start Crawley Horsham and Mid 
Sussex  5,000 *

Home-Start Great 
Yarmouth & District Great Yarmouth  5,000 

Home-Start Lisburn/
Colin Lisburn  5,000 

Home-Start Lorn Oban  5,000 

Home-Start 
Manchester North Manchester  5,000 *
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Home-Start Redbridge Ilford  5,000 

Home-Start South 
Leicestershire

Market 
Harborough  5,000 

Home-Start WeyWater Bordon  5,000 

Independent Arts Isle of Wight  5,000 

Involve Northwest Birkenhead  5,000 

JDA (Jewish Deaf 
Association) London  5,000 

Multi-Cultural Family 
Base Edinburgh  5,000 

North Glasgow 
Community Food 
Initiative Glasgow  5,000 

Osprey’s Wheelchair 
Rugby Club Swansea  5,000 

Outside the Box 
Development Support Glasgow  5,000 

Performing Arts 
Children’s Charity London  5,000 

Pro Bono Community London  5,000 

Ralli Hall Lunch and 
Social Club Hove  5,000 

ReadiBus Berkshire  5,000 *

Richmond Advice 
and Information on 
Disability (RAID) Teddington  5,000 

Ripon Community Link Ripon  5,000 

SeeAbility Epsom  5,000 

Stirling Family Support 
Services Stirling  5,000 *

Students and Refugees 
Together (START) Plymouth  5,000 

Sussex Deaf 
Association Brighton  5,000 

The Cornforth 
Partnership Durham  5,000 *

The Forget-me Not 
Chorus Llandough  5,000 

Tumble Family Centre Llanelli  5,000 

Unite Carers in Mid 
Devon Tiverton  5,000 

Warwickshire Vision 
Support Warwick  5,000 

Watford Sheltered 
Workshop Ltd Watford  5,000 

Yarm Methodist Church 
Youth Stockton-on-Tees  5,000 

Ashes to Gold Coleraine  4,500 

Burslem Jubilee Project Stoke on Trent  4,000 

Enable Ability Portsmouth  3,500 

Headway Gateshead 
and South Tyneside Blaydon-on-Tyne  3,500 

Person to Person 
Citizen Advocacy Bargoed  3,500 

Sheffield General 
Cemetery Trust Sheffield  3,500 

A Way Out Stockton-on-Tees  3,000 

Action Foundation Newcastle upon 
Tyne  3,000 

Alternatives (Dundee 
Crisis Pregnancy Trust) Dundee  3,000 

Footsteps to Family 
Connections Merthyr Tydfil  3,000 

Gateway into the 
Community Hexham  3,000 

Hazlemere &  Widmer 
End Good Neighbours High Wycombe  3,000 

High Kirk Social Action 
in our Community Ballymena  3,000 

Home-Start 
Wigtownshire Stranraer  3,000 

Lancashire Women’s 
Centres Blackburn  3,000 

Pontypridd Children’s 
Contact Centre Ltd Pontypridd  3,000 

Reading Samaritans Reading  3,000 

Reepham and District 
Day Centre Norwich  3,000 

Safe and Sound Homes 
(SASH) York  3,000 

St Luke’s C of E Primary 
School Cambridge  3,000 

Stick ‘n’ Step Wallasey  3,000 

The CoStar Partnership Cwmbran  3,000 

The Humanitarian and 
Saving Lives Trust London  3,000 

The Olive Branch (Faith 
in Action) Lancaster  3,000 

Tower Hamlets Mencap 
Society London  3,000 

Worcester CASH T/as 
Two Pennies Money 
Advice Worcester  3,000 

Garden Science Trust Swaffham  2,500 

Happy Days Children’s 
Charity Luton  2,500 

Autism Angels Ltd Wetherby  2,000 

Daniel’s Den Wembley  2,000 *

Holiday Homes Trust Chingford  2,000 

Ilkley and Dristrict Good 
Neighbours Ilkley  2,000 

Joel Community 
Services

Kingston upon 
Thames  2,000 

Merseyside Somali 
Community Association Liverpool  2,000 

Wetherby in Support of 
the Elderly (WISE) Wetherby  2,000 

Yealmpton Community 
Association Yealmpton  2,000 

Inclusively Taekwondo Bromborough  1,500 

Shopmobility Sheffield 
Ltd Sheffield  1,300 
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Ashfield Voluntary 
Action Kirkby-in-Ashfield  1,000 

Northern Butterflies Cramlington  1,000 

Royal National Lifeboat 
Institution Broadstairs  1,000 

Vanguard Productions Worthing  1,000 

Walker Street Contact 
Centre Ltd Hull  1,000 

West London Action for 
Children London  250 

Total for Welfare 3,436,650 

(Total number of grants: 352)

Youth £

Albert & Friends Instant 
Circus London  20,000 

Aspatria Dreamscheme Aspatria  20,000 

Be Your Best 
Foundation National  20,000 

Bolton Lads and Girls 
Club Bolton  20,000 

Empire Fighting Chance Bristol  20,000 

Essex Youthbuild Chelmsford  20,000 

Fight for Peace London  20,000 

Focus Leicester  20,000 

Hackney Quest London  20,000 

Hull Youth Support 
Trust Hull  20,000 

Inspire Suffolk limited Ipswich  20,000 

Just Around the Corner 
(JAC) Ltd Wokingham  20,000 

Mahdlo (Oldham Youth 
Zone) Oldham  20,000 

Mentoring Plus 
(BANES) Ltd Bath  20,000 

Redthread London  20,000 

Reidvale Adventure 
Play Association Ltd Glasgow  20,000 

Rushmoor Gymnastics 
Academy Aldershot  20,000 

SkyWay Charity Hackney  20,000 *

StreetGames UK Ltd Manchester  20,000 

Student Hubs National  20,000 

The AHOY Centre London  20,000 

The Baytree Centre a 
Project of Dawliffe Hall 
Educational Foundation London  20,000 

The Big House Theatre 
Company London  20,000 *

The Door Youth Project Stroud  20,000 

The Feast Youth Project Birmingham  20,000 

The Key Gateshead  20,000 

The NR5 Project 
(Trading As Future 
Projects) Norwich  20,000 

The SMASH Youth 
Project Swindon  20,000 

Wigan Youth Zone Wigan  20,000 

WorkingRite Edinburgh  20,000 

Young Bristol Bristol  20,000 

Young Enterprise Cardiff  20,000 

All Saints Youth Project 
(ASYP) part of All Saints 
Community Projects Birmingham  15,000 

Avon Youth Club Bristol  15,000 

Berkshire Youth Reading  15,000 

Edge Hill Youth and 
Community Centre Liverpool  15,000 

Girl Guiding UK - 
Windsor & Old Windsor 
Districts Egham  15,000 

Harrow Carers North Harrow  15,000 *

New Roots Housing 
Project Worksop  15,000 

North Worcestershire 
Basement Projects Worcestershire  15,000 

Scarborough YMCA Scarborough  15,000 

Senghenydd Youth 
Drop in Centre (SYDIC) Senghenydd  15,000 

Teen Talk Harwich  15,000 

The Clock (Yorkshire) 
Ltd Thirsk  15,000 

The Gap Community 
Centre Warwick  15,000 *

The Porch Project Hadleigh  15,000 

The Springboard 
Charity London  15,000 

The Tiverton Market 
Centre Co Ltd Tiverton  15,000 

Trelya Penzance  15,000 

Ulster Youth Orchestra Belfast  15,000 

Valley CIDS Alfreton  15,000 

Youth Almighty Project Sunderland  15,000 

Blue Watch Youth 
Centre Sunderland  12,000 

Art Against Knives London  10,000 

Ballysillan Youth For 
Christ Community Drop 
in Centre Belfast  10,000 

BANG Edutainment Ltd Harlesden  10,000 

Blackburn Youth Zone Blackburn  10,000 

CEEP Ltd Morecambe  10,000 

Chelmsford Boys Club Chelmsford  10,000 

Circle Community Ltd London  10,000 

Citywise Mentoring Ltd Manchester  10,000 

Close House Projects Hereford  10,000 

Code 7 Ltd Brixton  10,000 

Community Law Advice 
Network (Clan Childlaw) Edinburgh  10,000 
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Derwenthaugh Boat 
Station Gateshead  10,000 

Diane Modahl Sports 
Foundation Manchester  10,000 

Dreamscheme 
Northern Ireland Belfast  10,000 

Edinburgh International 
Science Festival Edinburgh  10,000 

Evolution Skatepark 
Scotland Ltd Stevenston  10,000 

Explore Fareham  10,000 

First Steps Future 
Training Ltd Glasgow  10,000 

For Jimmy London  10,000 

Getaway Girls Leeds  10,000 

Girlguiding Surrey East 
- Faurefold Horley  10,000 

Granton Youth Centre Edinburgh  10,000 *

Hope UK National  10,000 

Hounslow Action for 
Youth Feltham  10,000 

Ignite Trust Harrow  10,000 

Islington Boat Club Islington  10,000 

Just Another Dance 
Event - JADE Sheffield  10,000 

Keep The Dream Alive Stockton-on-Tees  10,000 

Lifeshare Ltd Manchester  10,000 *

LOGIC - an Initiative of 
St John’s Parish Church Moira  10,000 

Mendip YMCA Wells  10,000 

Nottinghamshire YMCA Nottingham  10,000 

One YMCA Watford  10,000 

Orchestra’s For All London  10,000 

Portishead Youth 
Centre Ltd Bristol  10,000 

Sans Street Youth & 
Community Centre Sunderland  10,000 

South Hampstead and 
Kilburn Community 
Partnership London  10,000 *

Springboard Project Horsham  10,000 

Stockton-on-Tees Sea 
Cadets Stockton-on-Tees  10,000 

Sylfaen Cymunedol Cyf Caernarfon  10,000 

The Archway Project Ltd London  10,000 

The Ayr Ark Ayr  10,000 

The Change Foundation Wallington  10,000 

The Factory Skatepark Dundee  10,000 

The King’s 
Cross Brunswick 
Neighbourhood 
Association (KCBNA) London  10,000 *

The Lowdown Youth 
Counselling & Support 
Service Northampton  10,000 

The Message Trust Manchester  10,000 

The Pirate Castle London  10,000 *

The Yard Adventure 
Centre Edinburgh  10,000 

Toonspeak Young 
People’s Theatre Glasgow  10,000 

Triathlon Trust Loughborough  10,000 

Wheelworks Belfast  10,000 

Young Gloucestershire Gloucester  10,000 

Young Leicestershire 
Ltd Leicester  10,000 *

Young Lewisham 
Project London  10,000 

Youth-Link Dundee  10,000 

The Thanet Youth & 
Community Centre London  8,500 

A690 Youth Initiative Sunderland  7,500 

Action Rotherham  7,500 

AYR: Newton 
Wallacetown Church 
- Newton Youth 
Ministries Ayr  7,500 

Blaenllechau Youth 
Project Blaenllechau  7,500 

Blairtummock Housing 
Association Glasgow  7,500 

Brandon Carrside Youth 
& Community Project Brandon  7,500 

Gorbals Youth Run 
Drop In Cafe (Gorbals 
Youth Cafe) Glasgow  7,500 

Harborough District 
Children and Young 

People’s Charity (HCYC) Market 
Harborough  7,500 

Prince of Wales Youth 
Club Canterbury  7,500 

Shaftesbury Youth Club Birkenhead  7,500 

St James’s House (Jobs 
in Mind) London  7,500 

S-team (the Doncaster 
Branch of Worth 
Unlimited) Doncaster  7,500 

The Buzz Project Fort William  7,500 

The Sycamore Project - 
Zac’s Youth Bars Bolton  7,500 

The Woodstock Youth 
Club Woodstock  7,500 

The Yellow House Liverpool  7,500 

Youth Resource 
Services (The 
RendezVous 
Sherborne) Ltd Sherborne  7,500 

Get Set Girls London  7,000 
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North of England 
District, The Boys’ 
Brigade Northumberland  7,000 

The Lighthouse Charity Attleborough  7,000 

City of Exeter YMCA 
Community Projects Exeter  6,000 

1st Keynsham Scout 
Group Keynsham  5,000 

BCHA Latch Project Bromley  5,000 

Boys and Girls Clubs NI Belfast  5,000 

Cowpen Quay 
Community Association Blyth  5,000 *

DreamArts London  5,000 

Excelsior Trust Norwich  5,000 

Eyres Monsell Club for 
Young People Leicester  5,000 

Getting Better Together 
Ltd Shotts  5,000 

HACRO St Albans  5,000 

Hall Green Youth Solihull  5,000 

Hambleton & 
Richmondshire Carers 
Centre Northallerton  5,000 

Hayle Youth Project Hayle  5,000 

Helenslea Hall 
Management 
Committee - Urban Fox 
Programme Glasgow  5,000 

Hinksey Sculling School 
Ltd

Abingdon-on- 
Thames  5,000 

Hope 2 Oban Oban  5,000 

Jumpstart Kidz Ltd Hereford  5,000 

Kids N’ Action London  5,000 

Ocean Youth Trust 
Scotland Greenock  5,000 

Pennywell Youth Project Sunderland  5,000 

Play Adventure and 
Community Enrichment 
(PACE) London  5,000 

Salisbury & South Wilts 
District Scout Council Salisbury  5,000 

The Edge Youth Centre Ballynahinch  5,000 

The Exodus Project Barnsley  5,000 

The Venchie Children 
and Young People’s 
Project Edinburgh  5,000 

The Verbal Arts Centre 
(Northern Ireland) Ltd Londonderry  5,000 

YMCA White Rose Sheffield  5,000 

Young People Taking 
Action Leiston  5,000 

Youth at Risk UK Royston  5,000 

Poole Sea Cadets Poole  4,000 

1st Callington Scout 
Group Callington  3,500 

42nd Leicester 
(Glenfield) Scout Group Leicester  3,500 

St George’s (Hanworth) 
Youth Club Feltham  3,500 

111 (Sunderland) 
Squadron Sunderland  3,000 

Acton Play Projects 
and Leisure Events - 
A.P.P.L.E. Bromyard  3,000 

Cramlington Voluntary 
Youth Project Ltd Cramlington  3,000 

Give Youth a Break London  3,000 

Gower Ministry Area 
Diocese of Swansea & 
Breacon

Swansea & 
Breacon  3,000 

Massive Youth Project Duffield  3,000 

Milford Haven Sea 
Cadet Corps Milford Haven  3,000 

Ocean Youth Trust 
North North Shields  3,000 

Parallel Youth 
Enterprise London  3,000 

The Beatrice Charity Leek  3,000 

The Rona Sailing 
Project Southampton  3,000 

TS Hastings Sea Cadets St Leonards-on- 
sea  3,000 

Ulster Youth Choir Portadown  3,000 

Wallsend Sea Cadets Wallesend  3,000 

5th North Devon 
(Bishops Tawton) Scout 
Group Barnstaple  2,500 

Elim Christian Centre Motherwell  2,500 

Heron Corn Mill 
(Beetham) Ltd Milnthorpe  2,500 

Hothouse Theatre Nottingham  2,500 

Liberty Consortium Londonderry  2,500 

The South West Norfolk 
Youth Opportunities 
Project Downham Market  2,500 

Walsall Carers Centre Walsall  2,500 

1st Kirkham & Wesham 
Scouts Kirkham  2,000 *

1st Menai Bridge Scout 
Group Menai Bridge  2,000 

Churches together 
youth club Sheffield  2,000 

Earleywood Scout 
Campsite Sandhurst  2,000 

Friends and Places 
Together Westcliff-on-Sea  2,000 

Raise the Roof (NI) Glarryford  2,000 

1st Maidenhead (Mid 
Thames) Sea Scouts Maidenhead  1,500 

3rd Hove Scout Group Brighton  1,500 

Easterhouse Project Glasgow  1,500 
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Southwark Children’s 
Brass Band London  1,500 

1st Frimley Green & 
Mytchett Scout Group Camberley  1,000 

Barnstondale Centre Wirral  1,000 

City of Liverpool Sea 
Cadets Wallasey  1,000 

Malvern Maritime 
Cadet Unit Malvern Link  1,000 

13th Bromley Boys’ 
Brigade Kent  500 

Total for Youth 1,911,500 

(Total number of grants: 199)

Other £

Royal Society for the 
Encouragement of Arts, 
Manufacturers and 
Commerce National  10,000 

The RDA Centre in 
Cleveland Ltd Middlesbrough  5,000 

Total for Other  15,000 

(Total number of grants: 2)

Total grants of £20,000 and below £13,279,200

Total grants of £20,001 and over £49,474,760

Total grants £62,753,960

(Total number of grants:  1,978 items)
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